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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

| am pleased to report that Migros Tiirk performed strongly in 2002, demonstrating its ability to
grow profitably in both its home and adjacent markets. The company posted consolidated after-
tax income of $23 million on total sales of 5926 million.

By far the most striking development in thisisa 178% increase in operating profit from $7.2 million
to 520 million. Operating profit contributed 88% of 2002’s after-tax income compared to 39% the
previous year, a testament to the emphasis management has placed on operational efficiency.

Indeed, one of our key objectives is to make operational profit on our core business
rather than depend on financial profit as has been the case in Turkey for many years. Seminal
changes in the economy over the past two years, which resulted in lower interest and inflation
rates, have made operational efficiency the single most important element in the supermarket
business, In fact, | am pleased to point out that Migros Tiirk is the most profitable publicly tracled
company in the sector in Turley.

In 2002, using strict criteria, we closed down numerous small stores and concentrated our resources
on opening larger and more productive stores. Af the end of the year, we had reduced the number
of stores in Turkey by 3.6% from £45 to 429 while increasing total available floor space by 1.6%
to close to 300,000 square meters.

Maore growth is targeted for 2003, both organically and through acquisitions. In 2003, by pursuing
a selective investment strategy, Migros Tirk plans to open 39 new stores in 2003, The Company
re-branded the 11 stores acquired from Oypa (supermarkets of OYAK) in February.

Recent economic crises not only had a significant negative impact on purchasing power but also
changed individual purchasing habits in favor of street bazaars and small retailers offering credit
lines, at the expense of organized trade. In this difficult trading environment, we aim to attain a
sustainable competitive advantage and get the best out of every square meter of space in order
to improve bottom line results. We are determined to achieve ultimate customer satisfaction based
on quality, service and price.



Our initiatives in e-cammerce [www.kangurum.com.tr) and custemer relationship management are
essential parts of our drive to foster custamer lovalty through focused promotions and reward schemes
while trimming costs through more widespread use of B28 business solutions.

As the Turkish economy stabilizes, there is no doubt that mere international players
looking for growth opportunities will enter the market. Migros Tirk is ready to deal with further
competition, thanks to its financial strength, market share and robust eperational efficiency.

Given the economic censtraints of the Turkish market, Migros Turk is committed to
expanding its foreign businesses. Our Russian operations have been extremely successiul: at end-
2002, Ramenka, our §o-50 joint venture with Enka Costruction Company, was operating 44,221 square
meters in five shopping malls and 10 supermarkets in Moscow, a 61% increase in retail space in one
year. Serving 17.3 million customers annually, sales of Ramenka rose to $247.4 million. In 2003,
Ramenla has budgeted $90 million in new investments in order to penetrate other impaortant urban
areas in Russia.

AL the same time we are increasing our focus on Russia, we are taking a hard look at ather markets
close to Turkey with the aim of achieving first mover advantage. We believe this timely and correct
sirategy will enable Migros Tk to build on the foundation established in 2002 to grow over and above
the market rate and achieve robust operational profits in 2003 and beyond.

In closing, | would like to extend my thanks to our customers, suppliers, partners amd shareholders
for their support and continued trust in us. | also want to thank eur management team whose efforts
have contributed so much to the company's successful perfermance in 2002,

Rahmi M. KOC




COMPANY PROFILE

Migros Tiirk is the largest and most profitable supermarlet chain in Turley. It is also a powerful
regional retail company. The company operates 429 stores in seven different service formats in
35 cities within Turkey and 23 Ramstores in Russia and Karalkhstan, Bulgaria and Azerbaijan.
In 2002 Migros Tirk reported sales of $926 million, gross profit of $209 million and net income
of 523 million, increasing its net selling area by 7% to 355,944 square meters.

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

Migros Tiirk began operating in Turkey in 1954,
It was acquired by the Kog Group in 1974 from
Migros Genossenschafts-Bund and was listed
on Istanbul Stock Exchange (MIGRS.1S) in 1991,

The Kot Group (51.06%) is the ultimate
controlling shareholder of Migros Tiirk today,
with the remaining 48.94% representing free
float.

OBJECTIVE

Migros Tiirk strives to meet its customers' needs
effectively by offering the right goods at the right
place and the right price with the highest
possible quality in line with the strategy of being
“the Group closest to the consumer™, In the
coming year, Migros Tiirk seeks to grow its local
and international investments and thus enhance
its reputation as a provider of guality goods and
SETVICES.

MISSION

Migros Tirk is committed to maintaining
leadership in the Turkish retail market and
expanding in nearby countries while improving
operational profitability and securing a healthy
financial structure.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (*)
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ECONOMIC CONCERNS AND THE TURKISH FOOD RETAIL SECTOR

In 2002, purchasing power continued to decline
significantly due to high unemployment and
lower real salaries among white-caollar
employees. As a result, Turkish consumers
curtailed expenditures on food and non-food
products.

These developments stemmed from the collapse
of an IMF-supported foreign currency
anchor-based economic program and the steep
devaluation of the currency in February 2001,
The unfavorable effects of the crisis spread
throughout the Turkish economy. Gross Mational

Consirnges

* Became more price conscious
* Favared low-price items

» Shopped more frequently

* Decreased basket size

* Shifted towards neighborhood
open air markets

= Became less loyal

Product contracted by 9.4% in 2001 while per
capita income declined from 53,000 to $2,100.
The inflation rate, which had been 30% the
previous year, rose to 70-80% and the Turkish
Liralost 113% ofits value against the US Dollar
after the implementation of a floating exchange
rate system,

The economy remained in recession throughout
2002, Lower inflation, weal domestic demand
and revaluation of the Turkish Lira had a direct
impact on the behavior of both consumers and
retailers:

Ratallims

* Price wars

» Store closures

= Scaling down investments
* Less SKU

* Diminishing negative cash
conversion days

» Retail sector shrank by 4-5% in 2002




MACROECONOMIC INDICATORS
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Retail sales account for about 20% of Turkey’s
GNF, and around 60% of that derives from food
retailing, creating a market of approximately
$20 billion shared by several large retailers,
corner shops and open-air markets.

Although the share of organized retail has
been increasing over the years, its share
does not exceed 20-25% of the total food retail
market or $4-5 billion. In addition to Migros
Tiirk, four other large national chains, two
foreign retailers and 20 regional chains operate
in Turkey.

The Turkish food retail market is expected
to grow at an healthy rate of more than 4%
through 2005. Chain stores are expected to
be the most dynamic food retail sub-sectors,
achieving double-digit sales growth in the near
future and increasing their market share.
Consequently Migros Tiirk believes there is
significant petential to grow both organically
and through acquisitions.



OPERATIONAL RESULTS

Domestic Operations
Migros Tiirk leads the market in Turkey, | Financial Highlights
offering modern shopping facilities to Revenues reLA 18,0
. : Gress Profit 1€5,2 155,2
customers with seven different formats; Operating Profit 78 25
Migros, 5ok, Ramstore, Migros and Ramstore EBITDA 31,7 :P'.:‘
Shopping Centers, Online Shopping, ::::I.Emendltueﬁ 19,7 26,7
Wholesale Trade and Bakkalim. . v
Gaross Margin 21,5
: S . . Operating Margin 00, 4%
MLgr_us Tiirk is committed to operational EEITOA Mar gin =
efficiency and profitable growth, [n 2003, the  [Gramn
company improved and rationalized its existing Revenues B
network of stores by opening 10 Migros® and Gross Profit B ey
23 Sok stores while closing down selected Eugﬁ?;mpmﬁl 1,‘;"}.\
locations. No. of Employees 5,926 5,997
Mo, of Stores 429 L5
Met Sales Area (sqm) 199,149 20,438

(1) These stores were 8 Cesme (bea, M Cesme Ardic in lzmir, M Erdemdi in Mersin, M Gooek in Muglz, MM Cankava Anser i Ankam, MM
Gazmnte p Bedesten in Gaziantep, MM Aaretler, MM Besiktas hlamuar i istanbel, M Yalova in Yalowe, MHEM Divarbakir Mega Center in
Diyarbakir.



At end-year 2002, Migros Tark had 65 M, 58
MM, 30 MMM, 273 Sok and three hypermarkets
in seven geographic regions of Turkey with a
total sales area of 299,149 square mefers.
Migros Tiirk plans to pursue a selective
investment strategy and focus on operational

productivity during 2003. The real growth rate
of Migros Turk is forecast at 12%, increasing

Migras Tiirk T.AS. Number of S5tores by Formats
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domestic sales to 1.6 quadrillion TL in 2003,
Plans call for the opening of 39 new stores (two
MMM, six MM, one M Migros stores and 30 Sok
discount stores) as well as rebranding the 11
stores acquired from Oypa in February 2003.
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Marketing in the Digital Age

As the largest food retailer in Turkey, Migros communications between headguarters,
Tiirk benefits from large economies of scale,  distribution centers, stores and suppliers. The
strong bargaining power and an extensive store  introduction of touch-screen kiosks in our stores
network. For Migros Tiirs, technology hasbeen  has contributed to greater customer
a source of efficiency at all levels, enhancing  convenience.

A New Communication Channel between Migros and its Customers
Customer Kiosks
168 Kiosks in 156 Migros Stores
in 20032




The Customer is King (CRM)

CRM activities target increasing customer loyalty
by providing them value for meney, tailor-made promotions and enjoyment.

Migras Tiirk pioneered customer-oriented
applications in retailing in Turkey. Customer
Relationship Management ([CRM) applications
started in 2001 and accelerated in 2002, Mining
the customer data warehouse has resulted in
special campaigns and promotions tailored to
individual interests, Migros Tiirk is dedicated
to identifying specific segments such as coffee
lovers, wine drinkers, dieters etc. and making
customized offers. Top-tier customers receive
personalized coupon offerings quarterly. As well

as mailings, Migros Tiirk
uses Internet, kiosks and
G5M messages to
contact customers. CRM
is also being applied as
a general campaign tool
to increase average spending per customer.
During November and December 2002, Migros
Tirk assigned specific spending targets to each
Migros Club cardholder. Gift vouchers were
offered to customers who achieved their targets.

4,900,000 Migros Club Cardholders in 2002
Representing 75% of Migros' Domestic Sales
56% of the Migros Club cardholders use their cards actively
On average, 15% of Migros customized offerings are used by customers




E-commerce (B2C & B2B)

Migres Tirk improved Migras Online Market
applications and its B2B system to enable
corporate procurement. Kangurum Online
Shopping Center presented improved online
shopping opportunities to customers, Migros

Online Market widened its service area to
include Fethiye, Mersin and Cesme in addition
to existing operations in Istanbul, lzmir, Ankara,
Bursa, Marmaris, Bodrum, Antalya and Adana.

B2B: Another Successful Implementation Project

156 Key Accounts in 2002
Migros Tiirk aims to increase the share of B2B in total precurement volume
inorder to reduce costs.

Launched in January 1999, Kangurum reported
aprofit in 2002 on sales turnover of close to $5
million. Maoreover, Kangurum.net (an internet
service provider) extended its customer base.

élkqngurum

www.kangurum.com.tr

The popularity of Migros Online Market has
increased considerably during the last two years
as its product line has expanded from 14 well-
known companies and brands to over 60 e-
stores,

Online wholesale rrade has increased both the
number of customers and the extent of its
service. In a short time, the service was
broadened to Anlcara and lzmir along
with Istanbul.

As Turkish consumers become
more price sensitive after the
2001 economic crisis, Migros
put more emphasis on offering
better terms to consumers.
Migros offers a variety of high

www.Kangurum.com.tr is “Turkey's Largest
Online Shopping Mall" with 60 e-stores,
28 product categories and 75.000 SKU.

MIGROS

SANAL MARKET ¥

www.migros,.com.tr

quality and good value private label products.
At end-2002, the number of private label
products was 566 and the share of private label
goods within total sales reached 10%.




Employment Policies

Migros Tiirk depends on the skills and
commitment of its employees in order to achieve
its objectives at home and abroad. Staff at every
level are encouraged to make their fullest
possible contribution to the success of Migros
Tiirk. Priority is placed on providing "the best
quality service” and “being the closest group™
to the customer.

Ongoing training programs seek to ensure that
employees understand the Company's
customer service objectives and strive to achieve
them. The selection, training, development and
promation of Migras Tirk ensure equal
opportunities for all employees, and all decisions
are based on merit,

Internal communications are designed to ensure
that employees are well informed about the
business of the Company. These include
"Migros Intranet” system, "Bizden Haberler"

manthly magazine and fortnightly "Migros Bilgi
Bllteni"” news bulletin,

Staff attitudes and commitments are frequently
researched through surveys, retraining
activities and store visits, Furthermore,
employees are encouraged to become involved
in the financial performance of Migros Tirk
through a variety of schemes, principally Migros
"Performance Related Pay Scheme".

In co-operation with Kog University, the junior
management of Migros attends regular
tailor made programmes and takes part in
distance learning schemes. E-learning under
the guidance of Kog-Bryce (IT Training Company)
offers another alternative to Migros and its
employees to keep pace with technological
advancements while reducing the cost of re-
training our employees.

The Butcher Training Centre (MESEYEM ), whose
quality is recognized by the Ministry of
Education, is a source of well-trained and
efficient butchers for our ever expanding number
of stares,




Foreign Operations

The transfarmation and eventual devolution of
the Soviet Union into new independent
Commonwealth of Independent States (C1S)in
the early 1990s created an immense opportunity
far Migros Tirk. The decision to implementing
its own intemationalization strategy by entering
Turkey's peripheral regions as an early mover
opened vast new markets while diversifying risk
against the fluctuations of Turkish economy.

In 1996, Migros Tirk opened its first overseas
store in Baku, Azerbaijan and established
its first two stores in Moscow in 1929, In 2000
overseas operations expanded rapidly with the
number of Ramstores totaling 15 in Azerbaijan,
Russia and Kazakhstan.

Migros International Retail Network Evelution

SPM 1996 | 1997 | 1998 | 1999 | 2000 | 2001 | 2002 “‘;ﬁ;""
| Aussia l — 2 | 5 | & [ 10 | 17
Bzarbaifan i | s [ 5 | 7 3 3 3
Kazakhstan | ] 2 2
Bulgania | 1 2 2
Shopping Mall As of June
T3 i Wl Wl Ml el Kol Kool Wl B
Fussia 1 ] ] Fi 3 5 5
Kazakhstan | I 1 1 1
Tutal 1 | & & 11 15 | 16 23 30

Expansion continued in 2002 with the opening
of new Ramstores and Shopping Malls in
Azerbaijan, Bulgaria and Russia, representing
an investment of $80 million. As of June 2003,

Migros Tiirk has net retail space of 66,690
square meters in 30 Ramstores: 22 in Russia,
three in Azerbaijan, three in Kazakhstan, and
twoin Bulgaria.

The Ramstore City shopping center and hypermaret is Moscow's newest and bargest retail comples.



International Presence of Migros

The Kuntseve Hypermarket and Shopping Mall was the first to open in Mosoow.

The success of its international operations have | The fruits of being the first Western-style retailer
transformed Migros Tiirk into a prominent | inthe Russian market, in particular in Moscow,
regional retailer with excellent growth prospects | has made Migros Tiirk's Ramenka venture the
in Russia and Kazalchstan, reflecting booming | flagship for overseas operations,

consumer spending in these countries.

International operations generated $288 million

revenue in 2002, derived mainly from Russia.

Capital Expenditures ("000 USD)
ITET




Mew Ramstores and a new Ramstore Shopping
Mall in Moscow and ather Russian cities will
spearhead rapid international growthin 2001,
The company has budgeted $90 million for the
canstruction of 10 new stores in Russia during
2003. This aggressive expansion strategy will
keep Migros Tiirk ahead of its competitors in
Russia.

However, Migros Tlrk is pursuing a more
cautious expansion strategy in its other
international ventures— Azerbaijan, Kazakhstan
and Bulgaria. Migros Tiirk is satisfied with the
performance of its retail operations in
Kazakhstan and the company forecasts
moderate medium and long term growth.
Rambutya reported a sales increase of about
208 with its three stores and a positive bottom
line in 2002 as the Kazakh economy registered
a higher growth than the Russian economy.
Rambutya continues to invest and strengthen
its position in the unsaturated Kazakh market
and plans to open a new store in 2003.

Investments in Azerbaijan have been negatively
affected by adverse economic conditions,
but the initiation of the Baku-Ceyhan pipeline
promises to improve the country’s

macroeconomic outlook —a fact that will be
reflected in Ramstore's performance. In 2003,
plans call for opening one new store while
closing a smaller one, thus increasing net sales
area with the same number of stores.

Steps will be taken in 2003 to reach optimum
operational efficiency and improve sales
through the opening of new stores with low
investment costs. As the number of overseas
stores increases to 34 by the end of 2003,
international operations will account for
approximately 25% of total turnover. On a
consolidated basis, Migros targets $230 million
in sales revenue from its intemational operations
in 2003,

Thi Ramstone Shoppeng Center n Almats, Kazakhstan's largest dty, charged shopping habits



Russia: Ramenka Ltd.

1997 - Start of Operation Partnership of: Number of Stores: : 15
Migros Turk T.AS. : 50% Shopping Mall & Hypermarket : 5
Enka Group (Turkish Partner)  : 50% Supermarlet £ 10

Ramenka, a 50/50 joint venture with Enka
Construction Co. in Russia, isthe most lucrative

international operation of Migros. Timely i

entrance into the untapped Russian market gave g::::::ﬁ;:ﬂm e s

the company a strong foothold in this market 5 Sl — —

with a brand loyalty as a first-comer. Ramenka's | Gross Profit 335 18,0

supermarkets and hypermarkets are | DperabingProfi o 7o

concentrated in Moscow, one of the most | Capital Expenditures 25,2

attractive retail marleets in the world with rising | Margin

per capita income and a population of over nine | Gross Margin 26,7%
illi Operating Margin 14,8%

miltion. EBITDA Margin 16,7%

' Growth

Ramenka's strategy has been to construct and =

lease shopping malls for 49 years fram | coees profit

the city administration, thus earning solid rental | Operating Profit

income in addition to sales revenues from its f‘i“ﬂ':mpm = o

own supermarkets and hypermarkets. This No_ﬂsm,e._-,y g

provides a cushion against potential price | NetSales Area (sqm) 7,410

competition from new entrance retailers in
COming years,

=) Mg Tiieks owwats S0% of R e il




Facts and Figures

Ramenka had five shopping
malls and 10 supermarkets at |
the end of zooz. Retail space
rose by a stunning 61% to
44,221 square meters and the |
number of customers reached
17.3 million. Annual sales of |
Ramenka reached to $247.4 |
million, half of which accruesto
Migros Tiirk. 2002 witnessed the
opening of the largest shopping
center in Moscow, Ramstore City,
with a total area of 72,000
Square meters.

[l Strong management know-how and

Fal t S ] irg Dat whi & .
i i PN Area (sqm) retailing experience are key factors behind

5 KU NTSEVD 8111997 Ramenka's success. Although Ramenka's
= MARINA ROSHA 26.11,1598 . ]
E KASHIESKATA 1801, 2001 pmduct prices Er? very ICDIﬂthtI'LI'IE, the
E BELAYEAVA 26,05, 2002 company has attained higher margins by
& o0z E s = H i
= [ FAMETCRECITY o || ST sosss | IMproving operational efficiency and lowing
CHERTONOWD TETRT ) ﬂxed costs, The 150 2(301 quality :emtjcat_e
SOKOLNIEL 4111989 signifies the company's focus on quality in
TITIRG: 33062000 - - i t
b 16162000 i ts opaan_uns. Rarmenla stra-nt income from
JARING 15.1:2.2000 its shopping centres, which accounted for
SOKM 06,03, 2001
SIMONOVSEY 07 63,2002 12% of total satest revenue for 2002, also
E | RECHNOYVAGZAL 16032002 boosted profitability.
= | BABUSHRINSKY 10042002
E KR ASNAPRESNEYA 11,06, 2002
L | ZELENOGHAD 01,02 2003
F | KRASNOYARSK 016,03, 2003
JULEBINGO 21.03.2003
HOKM-2 21.03.2003
SPORTIVNAYA 31.03.2003
EAZAN 24.04,2003
TRIFANCIVSEY 27.06.2003
Sub Total 23783
drramd Totol £3292

=1 Store defod's are o5 of 30 fune 2003,



Kazakhstan: Rambutya LLP

&

&

|

1999 - Start of Operation Partnership of:

Migros Turk T.AS. :51%
Butya Group (Local Partner) : 0%
Irwvestment Funds L 9%

Number of Stores: g
Shopping Mall & Hypermarket :1
Supermarlet £2

Migros Tiirk entered the Kazakh retail market
in 1998 by setting up a company, Rambutya LLP,
with the Butya Group, a local partner. Migros
Tiirk owns 51% of Rambutya LLP. The investment
decision was based on the potential of the
country in terms of economic and social
development due to its natural resources, high
educational level and an unorganized retail
sector,

Rambutya LLP started its operation with the
opening of Samal shopping center and Samal
Ramstore supermariet in Almati in 1999, It was
the first shopping centre of the country with
25,000 sguare meter sales area. Ramstore
hypermarket has 4,200 square meter net sale
area. Rambutya opened two more stores in
Astana and Almati in 2000 in order to increase
its market share.

The recognition of Rambutya's effort to provide
high gquality and pleasant shopping
environment to the Kazakh shoppers was "the
Choice of the Year Award for Kazakhstan". In
the retail category, Rambutya was awarded "the
Best Shopping Mall and Best Supermarket"
prize by a panel of public jurors.

{millicen LS 20032 2001
Fimancial Highlights

Rewenues 5.0 19,5
Gross Profit B 5.4
Ogrerating Profit 3.2 09
ERITOA 4,0 15
Capital Expenifibures 0,2 01
Margin

Gross Margin 27.8% 28,0%
Oparating Marzin 11,05% 4,5%
ERITDA bargin 13,7% 7.5%
Growth

Rawvenupes 48,8%

Gross Profit il

Operating Profit 263.7%

ERITDA 172,74

Mo, of Emgloyees 24B 246
Mo, of Stores 3 3
Net Sales Area [som) 6,769 6,769




Even though the Russian economic crisis Total Sales
K Fosrmal Slore Dpening Date

of 1908 affected the Kazakhstan's economic Araa (sqm)

development, Kazakhstan's economy is still a HPM | SAMAL 14.05.1999

high growth area and its macroeconomic SPM | ASTANA 25.10.2000 6765

indicators have been improving steadily. SPM | TASTAK 26102000

1 Stove dietails are as of 30 e 2007,

The Ramstone Shoppeng Cender In Amats, presents & mocern and brighe shopping esviroament, complete with an ndoor fce -skating dnk




Azerbaijan: Ramstore QTSC

1996 - Start of Operation
Partnership of:

Migros Turk T.AS. . 79.75%
Investment Funds £ 20.25%
Number of Stores: .3

Ramstore OTSC, the first subsidiary of Migros
Tiirk T.A.5. abroad was established in 1996 in
Balku, Azerbaijan. The first store of the company
and first supermarlet chain of the country, Xatai
Ramstore has 5,000-square meters of total
closed area and 10,000 SKU.

In order to enlarge its market share,
Ramstore QTSC opened five more supermarkets
in Azerbaijan between years 1997 — 1999,

However, the macroeconomic performance of
the country has not met expectations.

i

Purchasing power remained below the targets
and currency luctuations had a negative impact
on operations. |n 2000, the company decided
to close three supermarkets which were most
effected by unfavourable market conditions. In
Jurne 2001, a fire completely destroyed the first
and the biggest supermarket and the
headquarters of the company. The Xatal store
was re-built and restarted operations in January
2002,

The Bahu Ramstore in Azerbaijan sets the

agenda for hygiene, qualty and convenience,




The operations of Ramstore Azerbaijan  Azerbaijan, which has equity of $15 millien,
challenged local entrepreneurs to improve their  total $7.7 million as of end- 2003.

product quality and helped Azerbaijan achieve  Efficiency efforts put into place in 2002 have
international standards in terms of hygiene,  had a positive impact on results.

product quality, service quality and production

effectiveness.
Presently, Ramstore Azerbaijan operates three | fmillicn USE) 0032 z001
Ramstores in Baku with total net sales area of | Finandal Highlights
over 3,000 square meters. The sales of Ramstore | Revenves i 2
Gross Profit 10 08
Oparating Profit 04 =i1,8
ERITDA, 0 =iL,6
- | Capstal Expenditures 1.1 10
Format Stoms Dpenirg Date Tl.l-.a.l;.jsr.e: Margin
Auca (3om) Gross Margin 229% 23.6%
RATA O, 20032 Ogrerating Mar gin -BA% -25.45
5 6121987 ERITOA Mai gin -4.7% -17.0%
g AsAMAL | 01 3,007 .
GENCLIK 30.05.2003 Revenues 34.9%
5 Gross Profit A%
) Sove desads ave as off 30 June 2003 Operating Proflt a3
ERITDA G2T%
Mo of Emgloyees i &1
Mo, of Stares | 3
Met Sales Area (sqm) 2,180 BEL




Bulgaria: Ramstore Bulgaria AD

2001 - Start of Operation
Totally owned by Migros Tlrk:

Number of Stores: 2

Migros Tiirk started to operate in Bulgaria in
2001 through its subsidiary, Ramstore Bulgaria
AD. The second Ramstore, Dervenitza, was
apened in July 2002, With the opening of this
store, the total sales area of Ramstore Bulgaria
reached to 3,614 square

meters. Bulgaria is scheduled to join the EU in

(rnllion LSO

Fimameial Highlights

Ravanuas 6,9 ]

Gross Profit 14 1.2

Dperating Profit 1.0 0.9

ERITDA 0,3 gy
| Capital Expanditures 04 58

Margin

Gross Margin 16.5% 22.6%

DOparating Margin 15.1% 16, 4%

ERITDA Kargin A, 3% B.5%

Growth

Rawvanuas EFAL

Gross Profit 16:4%

Operating Profit 1. 6%

EBITDA 35 6%

Ko of Emglloyees 116 133

M o Stores 2 1

Net Sales Asea (sqm) 3614 3045

2007 and as such is the opening gate for Migros
Tiirk to Europe. The positive business climate
in the country also fosters Migros Tirk's
presence there while its geographic proximity
to Turkey is important in terms of logistics.

F Total Sales
1 PR o
Faat s P Area (sqm)
ZAPADEN 1805, 2001
! 4 3614
" DERVEMITZA 2500, 2003




Migros and its Subsidiaries Financial Highlights

LS5 in Thousands 2002 2001 Change (%)
Consolidated revenues 925831 | B17098 13
(Consalidated operating profit 19,999 7184 | 178
Incume{[luss] hefure Eain on net monetary position 16,231 1,709 1050
|Net income before minority interest 8313 17118 | B
Ket |ncuﬁé'é'iﬂ'1]iingmlnunryrmterefst 708 | 18,373 %
Short tert financial debl BE% | wmaw | B
Fixed assets-gross 530,459 422,683 25
Totalassets 569,085 | 500912 u_
Tatal shareholders' equity excluding minority interest 162,932 213,684 3
Capital expenditures 59,009 59,773 LT

Euro in Thousands

Consclidated revenues

Change (%)

Consolidated operating profit |
Inuxne.f'{:s?;}_tieiir_e'é'aflh"nn net monetary position 574 |
e before minodty interast 2,200 | 19433 14

...................... STl 2800 T
Short term financial deht war7 | 26,357 4
Fixed assets-gross 508980 | 479330 6
Totalassets | s623 | seee6 | A4
Total shareholders’ equrt'y excuding minority interess 251285 WEETE [
Capital expenditures 56,619 &7 B35 Er

TLin Billions

2001

|Consolidated revenues W272 | 1539028
| 13,532

""""" 50 | 3209 | o

37818 | 32,143 ¥
Met income excluding minorty interast 77 | 3,512 B
|Short term financial debt 46,806 | 43,732 7
[Fixed assets-gross B6T036 | 796135 8
Total assets 930497 | 943482 -1
Tuotal shareholders'equity excluding minority interest 429,762 | #0480 7
Caplral expenditures 96,450 | 112,585 -14
|Wumber of e;mployess %) 8659 | 8,250 5

) As of Recember 2000 oo 2007,



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER

[Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish Lira (TL)in tesms of the purchasing powes of the TL at 31 December
20032 unless otheswise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressedin thousands unless otherwise indicated.)

ASSETS 2002 002 2002 2001
Notes  Eug'000(*) USD'000(*) Billionsof TL Billions of TL
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 55,806 58,161 95,065 129,738
Available-for-sale investments 6 54,836 57.150 93,412 96,649
Trade receivables 7 16,556 17,255 28,203 27,238
Due from related parties -] 507 524 864 4,250
Inventaries £l 51,577 53,754 87,861 95661
Other current assets 10 19,876 20,715 33,858 29,748
Total current assets 199,159 207,564 339,263 383,284
Non-current assets
Available-for-sale investments 11 773 805 1,316 1,316
Investments in associates 11 1,950 2,032 3,322 959
Investment property 15 27,063 28,206 46,102 27,809
Property, plant and equipment 12 09,111 322,156 526,564 517,435
Intangible assets 13 1,054 1,099 1,796 4,722
Goodwill 14 -1,189 1,240 -2,026 -1,808
Other non-current assets 16 8,312 8,663 14,160 9,765
Total non-current assets 347,075 361,721 591,234 560,198
Total assets 546,234 569,285 930,497 943 482

("} Ewro (*EUR ") and US Dallar { "USD*) amounts presented abowe are tramsbated from Tarkish Lim {*TL®) for comvenience porposes anly,

at the offical TL excharge rate announce by the Central Bank of Turkey at 31 Cecember zooz, and therfore form part of these consolidated
financial statements pre paredin accordance with Inbemational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS).




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AT 31 DECEMBER
(Amounts axpressed in billions of Turkish Lira (TL) in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December
2002 unless otherwise indicated. Curencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless otherwise indicated. )

LIABILITIES AND N 2002 2002 2002 2001
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY PE5  EUR*000(*) USD'000(*) Blllions of TL Bllllans of TL
Current liabilities

Bank borrowings 17 23,603 24,600 40,208 33,292
Lease obligations 25 3,873 4,037 6,598 10,440
Trade payables 18 184,375 150,467 245,939 243,993
Due to related parties 8 9,821 10,235 16,729 30,127
Taxes on income 19 1,634 1,703 2,784 5,422
Other current liabilities 20 13.803 14,385 23,513 23,623
Total current Liabilities 197,109 205,427 335,771 356,897
Non-current liabilities

Bank borrowings 17 52,528 ST 85 289,481 118,493
Lease obligations 25 1,620 1,689 2,760 9,961
Provision for employment termination benefits 21 2,011 2,096 3,426 3,113
Deferred tax liabilities 19 34,740 36,206 59,178 53,421
Ot her non-current liabilities 3,100 3,231 5,281 3,734
Total non-current liabilities 94,000 97,966 160,126 188,722
Total liabilities 291,109 303,394 495 BO7 535,619
Minority interest 4,22 2,840 2,960 4,838 5,383
Shareholders” equity

Share capital 23 32,334 33,698 55,080 9,180
Adjustment to share capital 23 -4,938 -5.147 -8,412 37,488
Tatal paid-in capital 27,396 28,552 46,668 G666
Capital surplus 24 69,177 72,097 117,842 117,842
Translation reserve 2 -853 -889 -L,453 2,961
Retained earnings 26 156,565 163,172 266,705 235,009
Total shareholders® equity 252,285 262,932 429,762 402,480
Total liabilities and shareholders® equity 546,230 569,285 930497 943,482
Commitments and contingent liabilities 32

(") Emro ["EUR")and Us Dollar ["USD") amownts presented abowe are tramsfabed from Terkish Lim (*TL®) for comve nience purposes anly,
at the offical TL exchange rate announce by the Central Bank of Turkey at 31 Cecember zoca, and themefore form part of these consolidated
financial statements pre paredin accordance with Inbermational Financial Reporting Standards ["IFRS™).




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
(Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish Lira (TLYin tesms of the purchasing power of the TLat31 December
2002 uness otherwise indicated. Currendies other than TL are expressedin thousands unless othensise indicated. )

Nk 2002 2002 2002 2001
®% EUR'000(*)USD'000(*) Billlons of TL Billlons of TL

Met sales 4,27 888,343 925,831 1513272 1539028
Cost of sales -687 564 -f16,580  -1,171,250  .1,197,071
Gross profit 200,779 109,252 342,022 341,957
Sales and marketing expenses -26,637 -27.761 45,376 -39,982
General and administrative expenses 28 154,158  -160,664 262,605 286,658
Other operating expenses-net -Fo4 -B27 -1,352 -1,785
Profit from operations [ 19,190 19,999 32,689 13,532
Financial expense-net 79 -1, 606 1,716 4,839 21,163
Share of results of associates . . . 5,145
Fair value loss of available-for-sale investments -1,010 -1,062 1,720 -733
Gain on net monetary position 2a 18,650 19,637 769 75,666
Profit before taxation on income 34,224 35,668 58,299 72,457
Taxes on income 19 -11,526 -12,012 -18,634 -33,9%0
Profit from ordinary activities after tax 12,698 23,656 38,665 38457
Extraordinary item 30 537 -51B -B&T 6,214
Income before minority interest 22,200 23,137 37,818 32,243
Met (loss)/ income attributable ta minerity
interest 12 -§12 -429 - 2.269
Net income 21,789 22,708 37117 34,512
Weighted average number {(pon's) of shares with
face value of TL 1,000 value each 3 55,080,000 55,080,000 55,080,000 55,080,000
Basic and diluted eamnings per share in full TL 3 674 674 674 a7
Basic and diluted earnings per share excluding
extra ordinary item in full TL 3 23] &89 6EY Tig

("} Ewro [*ELUR ") and US Dallar { "USED*) amaounts presented abowe are tramslated from Tarkish Lim {*TL®) for comenience parposes anly,
at the offical TL exchange rate announce by the Central Bank of Turkey at 33 Cecember zooz, and therefore form part of these consolidated
financial statements pre paredin accordance with Inbemational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS).




I
MIGROS TORK TICARET ANONIM SIRKETI

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2002
TOGETHER WITH AUDITOR’S REPORT

MIGROS TURK T.A.S. ANNUAL REPORT 2002




PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

Dagaran Mas Serbest Muhasebeci
Mzl Migawirlia Anonim Sirket|
» member of

Pricemater hoasel nopers

BiK Piaza. Suleyman Seba Caddess
Ko ot [ Dok Kb g Akaretier
Begiktny 34157 Itanhul-Turkey
wawpweg lebal com i
Telephone: +gu{nzlyzb dodn
Facsimabe © +90 (712} 12t dogo

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Migros Tiirk Ticaret Anonim Sirketi

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Migros Tiirk Ticaret Anonim Sirketi
[“the Company™)at 31 December 2002 and the related consolidated statements of income and of cash flows
for the year then ended, all expressed in the equivalent purchasing power of the Turkish Lira as of 31 December
2002, These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statemeant presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. In our opinien, the consolidated financial statements referred to in the first paragraph above present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Migros Tiirk Ticaret Anonim Sirketi at 31
Decembar 2002 and the consolidated results of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Bagaran Nas Serbest Muhasebeci
Mali Misavirik Anonim Sirket

a member of
PricewatarthouseCoopers

Adnan Akan, SMMM
Istanbul, 11 April 2003




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AT 31 DECEMBER
(Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira (TL) in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at31 December

2002 unless otheswise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless othenwise indicated.)

ASSETS Notes 2002 2001
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 95,065 129,738
Available-for-sale investments & 93,412 96,649
Trade receivables 7 28,203 27,238
Due from related parties 8 864 4,250
Inventories 9 87,361 95,661
Other current assets 10 33,858 29,748
Total current assets 339,263 383,284
Hon-cumrent assets

Available-for-sale investments 1 1,316 1,316
Inwestments in associates 11 3,322 959
Investment property 15 46,102 a7.80%
Property, plant and equipment 12 526,564 517,435
Intangible assets 13 1,796 §,722
Goodwill 14 (2,026) (1,308}
Other non-current assets 16 14,160 9,765
Total non-current assets 591,234 560,198
Total assets 930 497 943 482

The accompmnying notes form anintegral part of these financal state ments,



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AT 31 DECEMBER
(Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira (TL) in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at31 December

2002 unless otheswise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless othenwise indicated.)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'

EQuITY Notes 2002 2001
Current Liabilities

Bank borrowings 17 40,208 33,292
Lease obligations 25 6,508 10,440
Trade payables 18 245,939 243,993
Due to related parties 8 16,729 30,127
Taxes on income 19 2,784 5,422
Other current liabilities 20 23,513 231,623
Total current liabilities 335,771 346,897
Non-current liabilities

Bank borrowings 17 89,481 118,493
Lease obligations 15 2,760 8,961
Provision for employment termination benefits 21 3.426 3n3
Deferred tax liabilities 18 59,178 53,421
Other non-current liabilities 5,281 3,734
Tatal non-current liabilities 160126 1B8 722
Total liabilities 495,897 535,619
Minority interest 4,22 4,838 5.383
Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 23 55,080 9,180
Adjustment Lo share capital 23 (8.412) 37,488
Total paid-in capital 46,668 46,668
Capital surplus 24 117,842 117,842
Translation reserve 26k (1,453) 2,961
Retained earnings 26 266,705 235,009
Total shareholders” equity 429,762 402,480
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 930,497 943482
Commitments and contingent liabilities 32

The a ccompmnying nates form an mtegral part of these finanoal statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
(Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira (TL) in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December
2002 uness otheswise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless othensise indicated.)

Notes 2002 2001

Met salas 4,27 1,513,272 1,535,028
Cost of sales (1.171,250) [1.197,071)
Gross profit 342,022 341,957
Sales and marketing expenses (45,376) (35,982
General and administrative expenses % (262,605) (286,658)
Other operating expenses-net (1,352 (1,785)
Profit from operations 4 32,685 13,532
Financial expense-net by (4,439) (21,163)
Share of results of assodates - 5,145
Fairvalueloss of avaitablefor-sale imiestmants (1.720) {733)
Gain on net monetary position a 31,769 75,666
Profit before taxation on income 58,299 T2 447
Taueson inconme 1% {19,634) (33,590
Profit from ordinary activities after tax 38,665 38,457
Extraordinary item 30 (B47) (5,214)
Income before minority interest 37,818 3223
et (loss)! income attributable to minority interest 22 (o) 2,269
Net income nig 34,512
Weighted average aunher [ooc's | of shares with face

value of TL 1,000 value each 3 55,180,000 55,180,000
Basic and ciute dearnings pershare in full TL 3 674 627
Rasic and diluted earnings per share excluding eira

ardinary fem in full TL 1 689 e

The a ccompmnying nates form an mtegral part of these finanoal statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
(Amaounts expressed in billices of Turkish lira (TLY in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December
2002 umless otherwise indicated. Currencies othes than TL are eageessed in thowsands unless othensise indicated.)

MHotes 2002 2001

OPERATING ALTIVITIES
Ket incame iy 512
Mafjustments to reconcile pet income
to mel cash (usedin) | provided by operting activities:
Minarity inferest (545) i
Drepraciation and amaortisation 12,13 54,058 63,374
Employment termination benefits-net 13 (1,598)
Taxation axpease 15,634 106
Intarest income (50,829 (95.58%)
Interest expense 55,545 128367
Lass an sases of propey, plant and equipment 65 537
Impairmant kss pravided for property plant and aquipment 044 =
Fair value lss of AFS investinents 1720 TR
Efec of adoption of 145 39 and addition of new subsidiany 1o

. Attt omaniaaion E (2.333)
Cash flaws Iram operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities 123,163 159,328
Changes in operating assets and liabikties-net
(excluding the effects of acquisitions and disposals):
{Incraasa)/Dacraasa in trade raceivahlas (351) 18,82
Decraasa In dua from redated parties 3.386 3.353
Decraase Ininventories T.R00 BI77
(Ierease) in olher currenl s ets (&.11m) {10,703)
(Decrease] in trade payables {2) (76,533}
(Deerease)/increase in dueto related pastios 113.398) 14,505
(recrease)/incredse in current liabdlities (x1m LATS
Increade in other non-turrent Gabilities 1.547 1,206
Ieoie taxes paid pel of recovery of withfholding tages {16.515) (2B61]

./ icrarey) iacre s I GHTE il L et sl (&3%5) 2,484
Het cash from operating activities 97,015 123013
Imesting activitles
Purehase of progerty, plant asd eoupaent 12 B6,072 (217,265)
Procesds Trom sale of propeny, plant and equipment 180 13,442
Addition of investment propedy-net 15 - (27 809)
(Inerease) /Decresse in investments and investinents in associates (2.363) 41,413
Decrease in goodwill-net 14 - 5025
Drescrease in available-for-sale investments 7817 19,393
Purchase of other intangible ascets-net (378) (1799
Inderest received 45863 101,307

__qﬁj\aﬂqtggﬂililnﬂimmmm (44,953) (65493)
Financing activities
(Decrpase)/Increase in shom-tenm loans and shom-tenm
partion af long-tenm bank barrowings 121, 854) 77,113
Drecrease i lease obligations {11043) (3.374)
Dividends paid (5.421) (. 7aq)
Jntarest pald. (55,747} (134.338)
Mot cash used in financing activitles (94,105)

_Effedts of exchange rate changes 7370 (1.145)
Mot (decrpase)/incram e in cash and

cashequivalents (34,673} (14015)
Cash undashlquﬂulu

___Etj‘m_hﬂiml!lfthejlat 5 129,738 143,753
Cash andcashequivalents
at the end of the year 5 95,065 124,738

The a ccompanying notes form an integral part of these finanial statements.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

(Aanounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira (TL.) in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2002 unless
atherwise indicated. Cumencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 1 - ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Migros Tirk Ticaret Anonim Sirketi ("Migros” or “the Company™) was established in 1954 and is registered in
Istanbul, Turkey under the Turkish Commercial Code.

The Comgany is mainly engaged in the retail sales of food and beverage, consumer and durable goods through
its Migros and ok stores, shopping centess, Bamstores abroad and on-line shopping. The Company also rents
floor space of the shopping malls 1o other rading companies, The average number of people employed in Migros
during 2002 is 5,812 (2001: 6,000} Migros and its subsidiaries are operating in 452 (2001 §61) supermarkets
with net retail space of 355,731 (2001: 332,331)square mefres, Retailing is the sole business segment of Migros
and its subsidiaries, Reportable segments comprise the geographical segments (Mote 4).

The address of the registered office is as follows:
Migros Tirk T.AS.

Caferaga Mah, Damga Sok,

Mo:23-25 Kadikiiy 81300

|5 tanbul

Subsidiary undertakings

The Company has the following subsidiaries ("the Subsidiaries" ). The nature of the business of the Subsidiaries.
and, for the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, their respective geographical segments are as
follows (see also Note 3 on Group accounting):

Country of Geographical Mature of
Sulssidiary incorporation segment business
Bamstore Simrl Sorumly
Tiirk Geda Miiesseses| (“Ramstore™) Azrerhaijan Azeshaijan Retail
Ramstore Bulgaria A.D,
{“Ramstore Bulgarla™) Bulgaria Bulgaria Retail
Limited Liabflity Company Rambutya
(“Ramburya™) Kazakhstan Kazakhstan Retail
Sok Marketler Tlcaret A.5, (“Sok Marketler®) Turkey (* Trading
Sanal Merkez Tlearet A.5. (“Sanal Merkez ™) Turkey ] Trading

("IHat incluced in the scope of consolidation on the grounds of mate fbty (see Note 3.0).

The addresses of the registered offices of the Subsidiaries within the scope of consolidation are as
follows:

Ramstore Qapali Tipli Sehmdar Cemiyed
Katal Reyonu Babek Prospekt Mehelle 1129
Baku, Azerbaijan

Ramstore Bulgaria A.D.
B - 2030, Kostenetz, 24 lantra St
Sofia, Bulgaria

T4 Rambutya
Samal-1, Furmanova Street
Aimaty, Kazakhstan



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

(mounts expressed in billions of Turkish ra (TL) i terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2002 unless
atherwise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless othenwlse indicated )

NOTE 1 - ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
Interests in joint ventures

The Company has interests in the following joint-venture {"the joint-venture” J. The nature of business of the
Joint-venture and, for the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, its respective geographical segment

is as follows:

Joint-wenture Country of Geographical Mature of
foint-wenture Partner Incorporation segment husiness
Limited LlabRlity Company EMKA Russian Russia Retail
Ramenka ("Ramenka™) Ingaatve Federation

Sanayi A5

{“Enka")

The address of the registered office of the jpint-venture is as follows:
191 Yartsevskaya Streel, 121351
Maoscow, Russian Federation.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a) Turkish lira financial statements

The consolidated financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with, and comply with, International
Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS"), including International Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (*IASB"). The Company and its Subsidiaries and Associates
registered in Turkey maintain their books of account and prepare feir statutory financial statements (*Statutory
Financial Statements” ] in Turkish lira in accordance with the requirements of the Capital Market Board of Turkey
(“CMB™), Turkish Commercial Code (the “TCC*), tax Legislation, and the Uniform Chart of Accounts issued by the
Ministry of Finance. The foreign Subsidiaries, Joint-venture and Associates maintain their books of account in
accordance with the laws and regulations in force in the countries in which they are registered,

These consolidated financial statements are based on the statutory records, which are
main tained under the historical cost comvention (except for the fscal revaluation of property, plant and equiprment
as discussed in Note 12], with adjustments and reclassifications including restatement for changes in the general
purchasing power of the Turkish lira, for the purpose of fair presentation in accordance with IFRS, issued by the
1ASE.

The restatement for the changes in the general purchasing power of the Turkish lira as
of 31 December 2002 is based on WS 29 (*Financial Reporting in Hyperinfationary Economies” ). [AS 29 requires
that financial statements prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy be stated in terms of the
reasuring unit current at the balance sheet date, and that corresponding figures for previous periods be restated
in the same terms. One charactesistic that necessitates the application of 185 29 is a cumulative three-year
inflation rate approaching or exceeding 100%, The restatement was caloulated by means of conversion factors
desived from the Turkish nationwide wholesale price index ("WPI" ) published by the State Institute of Statistics
(515" L Suchindices and conversion factors used to restate the financial statements at 31 Decamber are given

helow:
Nates Index Conversion factors
31 December 2002 6,478,8 1,000
31 December 2001 4,951,7 1,308
31 December 2000 2,626,0 2,467



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

(Aanounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira (TL.) in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2002 unless
atherwise indicated. Cumencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
The main procedures for the above mentioned restatement are as follows:

Financial statements prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy are stated in terms of the
measuring unit current at the balance sheet date, and the corresponding figures for previous periods are
restated in the same teqms,

Manetary assels and liabilities that are cardied at amounts curent at the balance sheet date are not restated
because they are already edpressed in terms of the monetary unit current at the balance sheet date,

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities which are not carried at amounts cusrent at the balance sheet date, and
components of shareholdess' equity are restated by applying the relevant monthly conversion factors,

Comparative financial statements are restated by applying general inflation indices to the currency purchasing
power at the latest balance sheet date,

All items in the statement of income are restated by applying the relevant (monthly) conversion factors.

The effect of inflation on the net monetary lability position of the Company is included in the statement of
income as gain on net monetary position,

b) Translation of foreign undertakings' financial statements

The results of Company's foreign undestakings are transiated into Turkish lira at the average rate for the period
except for the foreign Joint-venture reporting in the currency of a by pesinflationary economy, Tor which closing
rates are applied to local currency amounts, and then restated in accordance with 185 29 from the date of the
transaction. The assets and liabilities of the Company's foreign undertakings are translated into Turkish liva at
the closing rate for the year. Exchange differences arising on retranslation of the opening net assets of foreign
undertakings and differences between the average and year-end rates are included in ranslation resesve,

NOTE 3 - 5SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarized helow:

Group accounting

a) Theconsolidated financial statements include the accounts of the parent company, Migros Tiirk Ticaret 5.,
its Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and its Associates {altogether referred as the "Group™) on the basis set out
in sections (b}, (c) and {d) below. The financial statements of the companies included in the scope of
consalidation have been prepared as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS applying uniform accounting policies and presentation. The resulis of
subsidiaries and associates are induded or excluded from their effective dates of acguisition or disposal
respectively. Goodwill / (Negative goodwill] arising on the consolidation of subsidiary undertakings, jaint
wenture or associates is reported separately in the balance sheet.

b) Subsidiary undertakings, which are those entities in which the Group has an interest af more than one half
of the voting rights or otherwise has power to exercise control over the aperations.

The table below sets out all Subsidiaries and shows their shareholding structure at
31 December:
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Divect and indirect
Shareholding by Migros and its Subsidiaries (%)

Subsidiary 2002 2001

Ramstore (1) 7275 72.75
Ramstore Bulgarla (1) 99.99 99.59
Rambutyai1) 51.00 51,00
S0k Marketler (2) 99,60 99,60
Sanal Merkez (2) 69,99 69,99

(1) The balance sheets and statements of loss and income of the Subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by
line basis and the carrying value of the investrment held by the Company and its Subsidiasies is eliminated
against the related shareholders® equity. Intescompany Iransactions and balances between the Company
and its Subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation, The cost of, and the dividends asising fom, shares held
vy the Company and its Subsidiasies in the Subsidiaries are eliminated from shareholders' equity and income
for the period, respeclively,

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no longer
consolidated from the date that control ceases. Where necessary, accounting policies for Subsidiaries have
been changed to ensure consis tency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Sok Marketler and Sanal Merkez are excluded from scope of consolidation on the grounds of materiality.
These subsidiaries are accounted for as if they are available for-sale investments (see Notes 3 and 11)

(z

€) Joint Ventures are companies in respect of which there are confractual arrangements through which an
economic activity is undertaken subject to joint control by the Company and its Subsidiaries and one or
mare other parties. joint Venture, Ramenka, is consolidated using the proportionate consolidation method
i.e. by consolidating the Group's share of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of each joint Venture
on aline-by-line basis.

The table below sets out the foint-venture and shows its shareholding structure at 31 December:.

Direct and Indirect
Shareholding by Migros and its Subsidiaries (%)
Jaint-venture 2002 2001

Ramenka 50.00 20,00

d) Investments in associated undertakings are accounted for by the equity method of accounting. These are
undertakings over which the Group generally has batween 20% and 50% of the vofing rights, or over which
thie Group has significant influence, but which it does not control, Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Groug and its associated undertakings are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associated
undertakings; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transacfion provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Equity accounting is discontinued when the carrying amount of the investmentin
an assoclated undertaking reaches zero, unless the Group has incurred obligations or guaranteed obligations.
in respect of the associated undertaking or significant influence of the Company ceases. The camying amount
of the investment at the date when significant influence ceases is regarded as cost thereafter.

The tahle below sets out all Associates and the proportion of ownership interest at 31 December 2002:
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Proportion of cwnership interest (%)

Associate 2002 Pk
Temel Gida GmbH ("Temel Gida™) 20,00 1000
Kog Ece Proje Yinetimi ve Tic. A5, ("Kog Ece™) 2500 1500

Tari Pazarlama ve lletisim Hizmetleri A5, (*Tam Pazarlama®™) 32,00 -

Investments in these associates are not accounted for by the equity method of accounting on the grounds of
materiality as their net result for the year and total shareholders® equity at the balance sheet date are immaterial
to the overall consolidated financial statements, instead they are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

el Invesiments, in which Migros has controlling inferests below 20%, or over which the Company does not
exercise a significant influence, are carried at cost and restated to the equivalent purchasing power at 31
December zooz less any impairment when their fair value cannot be reliably measured (Note 6], Effective
frown 1 January 2000, due to the adoption of 1AS 39, all other investments are dassified as avail able for-sale
equity securities fsee Notes 3 and & )

f)  The results of foreign Subsidiaries and joint-Venture are ranslated into Turkish liva at average rates for the
period (except For foreign joini-venture reporting in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy, for which
closing rates are used) and then restated in accordance with 1AS 29 from the date of the ransaction. The
assets and liabilities of foreign undertakings of the Company are ranslated into Turkish lira at the closing
rate for the year, Exchange differences arising on retranslation of the opening net assets of foreign Subsidiaries
amd Joint Venture and differences hetween the average and year-end rates are included in translation reserve,

g)  The minority shareholders' share in the net assets and results for the year for Subsidiaries are separately
classified in the consolidated balance sheet and statement of income as minority interest,

Related parties

Far the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, shareholders, key management personnel and Board
members, in each case together with their families and companies controlled by or affiliated with them and
associated companies are considered and referred to as related parties. A number of transactions are entered
into with related parties in the normal course of business (Note &),

Investment securities

At 1 January 2001 Migres and its subsidiaries, joint-venture and associates adopted 185 39 and classified its
investments into the following categories: trading, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale. Investments that are
acquired principally for the purpose of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price are classified as
trading investments and included in current assets. Investments with fixed maturity that the management has
the intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to maturity. During the period the Group did not
hold any investments in these categories.

Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for
liguidity or changes in interest rates, are classified as available-for-sale; these are induded in non-current assets
unless management has the express intention of holding the investment for less than 12 months from the balance
sheet date or unless they will need to be sold to raise operating capital, in which case they are included in current
assets. Management determines the appropriate dassification of its investments at the time of the purchase and
re-evaluates such designation on a regular basis.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment securities

All investment securities are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and
indluding acquisition charges associates with the investment. After initial recognition, investment securities that
are classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair value unless fair value cannot be reliably measured.

For inves tmenis where there is no quoted market price and where a reasonable estimate of fair value could not
be determined since other methods are inappropriate and unworkable, they are stated at cost less any impairment
in value.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables that are created by the Company by way of providing goods or services directly fo a debtor are
carried at amortised cost. Short duration receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at original invoice
amaount unless the effect of imputing interest is significant.

A credit risk provision for rade receivables is established if thereis objective evidence that the Company will not
be able to collect all amounts due. The amount of the pravision is the difference between the carrving amount

and the recoverable amount, being the present walue of all cash flows, including amounts recoverable
from guarantees and collateral, discounted based on the original effective interest rate of the originated receivables
at inception.

If the amount of the impairment subseguently decreases due to an event occurring after the write-down, the
release of the provision is credited to other income.

Loans originated by the Company and provisions for loan impairment

Loans originated by the Company by providing money directly to a borrower, other than those that are originated
with the Intent to be sold immediately or in the short term, are dassified as loans orginated by the Company.
All lpans are recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers and measured at amortised cost.

When the loan is originated by the Company by providing money directly to a bank, the loan is secured with
marketable securities, Turkish government bonds and treasury bills, acguired under reverse repurchase agreaments.
with banks with a predetermined sale price at fized future dates and is stated at amortised cost. The accrued
interest represents the apportionment to the current period of the difference between future sale prices and the
amount provided by the Company. Such originated loans where original maturity at the time the money is directly
transferred to the bank is less than three months, are considered and classified as cash equivalents for the
purposes of cash flow statements,

Loans originated by the Company that have a fixed maturity are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

A credit risk provision for loan impairment is established if there is objective evidence that the Company will not
be able to collect all amounts due. The amount of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount
and the recoverable amount, being the present value of all cash flows, including amounts recoverable from
guarantees and collateral, discounted based on the original effective Interest rate of the originated loan at
inception.

If the amount of the impairment subseguently decreases due to an event occurring after the write-down, the
releas e of the provision is credited to other income,
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories including mainty merchandise stodks are valued at the lower of cost restated to equivalent purchasing
power at 31 December 2002 or net realisable value. Cost is determined by the welghted average method
[Mote gl Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less selling
EXpENsEes.

Investment property

Land and buildings that are held to earn rentals or for capital apprecdiation or both rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes or sale in the ordinary course of business
are dassified as investment property and carried at cost less accumulated depreciation (except land) under the
cost method (Mote 15). The cost of a self-constructed investment property is its cost at the date when the
construction or development is complete. Until that date, the Company applies 185 16, Property, plant and
Equipment. At that date, the property becomes investment property and thus it is transferred to investment
progerty.

Property, plant and equipment and related depreciation

Progerty, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depredation in each case restated to equivalent
purchasing power at 31 December zooz. Depreciation is provided on the restated amounts for property, plant
and equipment on a straight-line basis. The depreciation periods for property, plant and equipment, which
appraximate the economic useful lives of such assets, are as faollows:

Years
Buildings 10-50
Leasshold improvements Over period of lease
Machinery and equipment 4-10
Furniture and fiztures i:;ﬂ
Motor vehicles

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and eguipment are determined by comparing proceeds with their
restated amounts and are included in the related income and expense accounts, as appropriate.

Goodwill

Goodwill and negative goodwill arising on consolidation, which represents the difference between the acquisition
price and the attributable share of Migros and its Subsidiaries in the fair value of the underlying net assets of
the company acquired, is capitalised and amortised. Goodwill is amortised using the straight-line method owver
its estimated useful life, generally 5 years. The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed annually and adjus ted for
permanent impairment where it is considered necessary (Note 15). Megative goodwill not exceeding the fair values
of acquired identifiable non-monetary assets is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the remaining
weighted average useful life of the identifiable acquired depreciable | amortisable assets.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER
(Amounts expressed in billlors of Turksh Urea (TL) in terms of the puschasing powes of the TL at 31 December 2002 widess
otherwise indicated. Currendies other than TL are expressed n thousands urdess otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill comprise acquired intellectual property and other identified rights. They
are recorded at acquisition cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives for a
period not exceeding 10 years from date of acquisition. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of any intangible asset is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverahle amount {Note 131

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective yield method; any difference between proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings. Borrowing costs are charged to the income statement when they incur. However, borrowing costs.
that are directly attributable ta the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset.

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the
loweer of the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding lease obligations, net of finance charges, are included as finance lease
obligations. The interest element of the finance costis charged to the income statement over the lease period.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the useful life of the asset
(Mote 22).

Obligations under finance leases are stated in the financial statements at the acquisition values of the related
property, plant and equipment. Future interest payments inherent in the lease contract are charged to income
owver the period of the lease (Note 25).

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessar are dassified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Prepayments forland leases

Prepayments for operational land leases of land plots on which hyperstores are constructed are expensed over
the life of the respective lease, which is generally 49 years (Notes 10 and 16} Apart from the initial prepayment,
the lease contract provides for further annual payments.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Deferred taxes

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their camying values in the consolidated financial statements. Currently
enacted tax rates are used to determine deferred income tax.

The principal temporary differences arise from the restatement of property, plant and equipment and inventory
ower their historical cost, the portion of allowance for unearned credit finance income and expense that is currently
non-tax deductible /taxable, provision for employment termination benefits and carry forward tax losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, where deferred tax assets resulting
from deductible temporary differences are recognised fo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority are
offset accordingly.

Employment termination benefits

Employment termination benefits represent the present value of the estimated total reserve of the future probable
obligation of the Company arising from the retirement of the employees calculated in accordance with the Turkish
Labor Law {Mote 21).

Forelgn currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year have been translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been translated
at the exchange rates prevailing at year-end. Exchange gains or losses arising on the settlement and translation
of foreign currency items have been included in the statements of income.

Theresults of overseas Subsidiary undertakings and joint-venture are translated into Turkish lira at the average
rate for the period {except for joint-venture reporting in the currency of hyperinflationary economy, for which
closing rates are used) and then restated in accordance with IAS 2g from the approdimate date of the transaction.
The assets and liabilities of overseas undertakings are translated into Turkish lira at the closing rate for the
period. Exchange differences arising on retranslation of the opening net assets of overseas subsidiaries and
differences between the average and period-end rates are included in cumulative translation adjustment.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised on an accrual basis at the time deliveries are made, the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company at the fair value of considerations received or receivable. Net sales represent the invoiced value of
gonds sold less sales returns and commission, and exclude sales taxes {Note 27).

Other revenues sarned by the Group are recognised on the following bases:

Royalty and rental income-on an accrual basis,

Interest income-on an effective yield basis.

Dividend income-when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share capital and dividends

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period
in which they are declared.

Financial instruments and financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to a vasiety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in debt and
equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates andinterestrates, The Company’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the financial performance of the Company.

Risk management is camied out by individual Subsidiaries and Associates under policies approved by their Board
of Directors.

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing liabilities
and assets. These exposures are managed by using natural hedges that arise from offsetting interest rate sensitive
assets and liabilities.

Funding risk
The ability to fund exisfing and prospective debt reguirements is managed by maintaining the availability of
adequate committed funding lines from high quality lenders.

Credil risk

Owmnership of financial assets involves the risk that counter parties may be unable to meet the terms of their
agreements. These risks are monitored by credit ratings and limiting the aggregate risk from any individual
counter party. The credit risk is generally highly diversified due to the large number of entities comprising the
customer bases and their dispersion across many different industries.

Foreign currency sk
The Company is exposed to the foreign exchange risk through the impact of rate changes at the translation of

foreign currency denominated liabilities to local currency. These risks are monitored and limited by the analysis
of fareign currency position (Note 33).

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced by a quoted market price, if one
exists.

The estimated fair values of inancial instruments have been determined by the Company using available market
information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgment is necessarily required to interpret
market data to estimate the fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative
of the amounts the Company can realize in a current market exchange.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the financial instruments for
which itis practicable to estimate fair value:
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Manelary assels

The fair values of balances denominated in foreign currencies, which are franslated at year end exchange rates,
are considered to approxmate carmying values,

The fair values of certain financial assets carried at cost, including cash and amounts due from banks, are
considerad to approximate their respective carrying values due to their short-term nature and negligible credit
losses.

The carrying values of trade receivables along with the related allowances for uncollectability are estimated to
be their fair values.

Monetary labilitres
The fair values of bank borrowings and other monetary liabilities are considered to approdmate their respective
carrying values due to their short-term nature.

Long-term borrowings which are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at year-end exchange rates
and accordingly their fair values approximate their carrying values,

Trading liabilities have been estimated at their fair values.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share disdosed in these statements of income are determined by dividing net profit by the weighted
average number of shares that have been outstanding during the year concerned.

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares {*Bonus Shares™)
to existing shareholders from retained earnings and revaluation surplus (Mote 26). For the purpose of earnings
per share computations, such Bonus Share issuances are regarded as issued shares, Accordingly the weighted
average number of shares used in eamings per share computations is derived by giving retroactive effect to the
issuances of the shares without consideration.

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shared in issue.

2002 2001
Met income attributable to shareholders 3raaz 38,512
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 55, 080,000,000 &5, 080,000,000
Earnings per share (expressed in full TL per share) 674 637

There was no difference between basic and diluted earnings per share for any class of shares for any of the
periods.
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NOTE & - SEGMENT INFORMATION

In these consolidated financial statements at 31 Decembes 2002 the reportable segments comprise the geographical
segments, whilst retailing is the sole business segment.

a) External revenues 2002 2001

Turkey 1,245,199 1,352,350

Russian Federation 202,170 133,920

Kazakhstan 47,340 36,656

Bulgaria 11,233 #,803

Azerbaijan 7,330 6,255

T — 1513272 159,008

b) Dperating profit/(loss)

Russian Federation 25,193 15,860

Kazakhstan 5,129 1,658

Turkey 5,595 {4,788)

Azerbaljan (632) {1,592)

Bulgasia (1,696) (1,606)

32,689 13,532
c) Segmental analysis for the year ended 31 December 2002 Intar
Russian Tokal .’urrl
Terkey  Azertafjan  Bulgaria  Fedemtion Marakhstan Combined Elimination  Total

Extemal reventes 1,245,159 L300 11233 M0 &30 1513272 1,513,272
Inter segment revenses 3,068 - 27 A2 &.213 {4.213)
Revenues 1,268,965 7330 11260 202590 47380 1517485  (8.213) 1,513,272
Cost of sales (578,892) (56450  (9.025) (147,251) (34187 (11750000 3750 (1,171,250)
Grass profit 200l 1,681 1234 55,335 13153 ELWE ) {459} 142,022
Adminisirative expenses 12392800 (2.29%)  (3.94e) (11,030 [8,504) {263,064} 459 [262e05)
Sales and markeling expenses  (23,801) 167) (8116 (2.392) 165.376) {65,376
Other expensa (2,397) 53 15 977 (1,352) (1,352)
Operating profi wses (e (uees)  sasy  sms v 685
External revenues 1,352,390 6255 G803 133530 Jasse 1539028 1,534,008
Inter 5egmentfmnue5 511 - . - 5.711 15.711) -
Revenues 1,358,101 [ 9803 13393 36656 1546739 (5.711) 1539028
Cost of sales (1065812 (47820 (75500 (9R203  (26356) (12027820 571 (1197071
Gross profit 292,289 1,477 2213 35718 10260 341,957 381,957
Administrative expenses (2694850 (3a0) {1206 {65290 (6,337)  (386,658) {286,6:58)
Sales and markeling expenses (14,556 #2513 (10,125 (2,265} {39,582 (35, 982y
Other expense (2,638) a1 &10 (1,785) (1.785)
Dperzting profit (788) (1592) (L6068 19840 1458 13552 13532
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NOTE &4 - SEGMENT INFORMAT ION (Continued)

d) Segment assets employed

2002 2001
Total assets
Turkey 56,1419 Tr3254
Russian Federation 210,948 177,042
Kazak hstan 3144 444,542
Bulgaria 19,098 21,668
Azerhaijan 6,004 7.5a
Total combined 1,029,337 1,030,488
Less: Inter segment elimination {9B,840] (BT, 006}
Total assets as per the consolidate
financial statements 930,497 943,482
| _Met assets 2002 2001
Turk ey 427,738 382,573
Russian Federation 7B 722 4,053
Kazakhstan 11841 7,365
Bulgaria S.848 10,058
Azerbaijan 5,574 f.141
Total combined 533,723 491,230
Less: Inter segment elimination {99,123) [,'Ej.jﬁ?-}-
Tatal net assets 434,600 407,863
Less minority Interest (4,838) (5,383)
Total shareholder's equity as per the
consolidate financial statements 429,762 402,480

e) Capital expenditures, depreciation and amortisation

2002 2001
Capital expenditures
Russian Federation 61,476 A7,3TB
Turleey 32223 530,333
Azerbaljan 1777 3,690
Bulgaria 91 10,975
Kazakhstan 283 205
L 96,450 112,585
Depreciation and amortisation
Turkq-.r &5, 792 58,424
Bussian Federation 5,307 2,561
Kazakhstan 1,265 1,000
Bulgaria 1,229 7o
ﬂ.ﬁ% —
) Minority interest - we]
Kazakhstan 3E94 3,609
Azerhaijan 939 1,769
Bulgaria ] 5
ol i
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NOTE 5 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2002 2001

Cash in hand 5,054 7843
Banks

- demand deposits 16,103 29,422

- time deposits 14,485 31,445

Cheques in collection 241 618

Other liquid assets 59,183 G0,410

95,065 129,738

Weighted average effective interest rates on TL denominated time deposits accounts and on US D denominated
bank accounts vary between 42-54% p.a. (zoown 60-61% p.a.), and 3-11.75% p.a. (2001 5.7110.75% p.a.,
respectively. Time deposits have an average maturity of two months {zo01: two manths), Other cash eguivalents
mainly indude receivables on credit card slips with an average maturity of 13 days.

NOTE & - CURRENT AVAILABLE - FOR - SALE INVESTMENTS

2002 2001
Debt securities 88,419 91,536
Equity securities 4,993 5,113
93,412 96,649

The details of debt securities at 31 December are as follows:
2001

2002
Interest rate p.a. Amount Interest rate p.a. Amount

Treasury bills and government bonds I75%-5T.85% 39536 51.75%-78.46% 55,219

Eurobond {USD) G.875% 12.4% 36,951 11.75%-12,375% 15,877
Foreign currency bonds (USD) A%-8.70% 11,932 B%-10.8% 20,440
88,419 91,536

Analysis of debt securities by maturity at 31 December is as follows:

2002 2001

Period remaining to maturity
1-30 days 10,182 14,034
30-90 days 21,231 14,997
90-180 days 9,130 18,004
180 days-one year 10, %24 18,624
Ower one year 36,952 15,877
88,419 91,536
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NOTE & - CURRENT AVAILABLE - FOR - SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Details of equity securities at 31 December are as follows:

2002 2001
Shareholding Amount  Shareholding Amount

Listed
Maret Marmara Bes., Et. San.Tic. AS. ("Maret™) 5% B32 5% B3&
Mot listed
Kog Finansal Hizmetler A5, ["KF5™) 0.37% 4,161 ” =
Koghank AS. : : 0.56% 4,227

i i 4993 5,113

On 18 july 2002 the Company's Board of Directors has decided to exchange its 0.56% shareholding at Koghank
A5, for the shares of Kog Finansal Hizmetler AS., the company that engages in the financial activities of the Kog
Group. The transaction has been approved by the Board of Directors of Kog Finansal Hizmetler AS. on 2 September
2002, As aresult of this exchange, the Company no longer holds the shares of Kochank A.5. but has acquired
(.37 % of the shares of Kog Finansal Hizmetler A.S. KFS is stated at fair value after an impairment loss provision
amounting to TL 1,666 billion. Impairment loss is recognised in fair value loss on available-for-sale investments
im the income statement.

For Maret, which is traded in an active market, fair value is determined by reference to Istanbul Stock Exchange
quoted bid prices at balance sheet dates.

NOTE 7 - TRADE RECEIVABLES

2002 2001
Customers 30458 27,319
Less: provision for impairment (2,255) (81)

28,203 27,238

The Company's historical experience in collection of accounts receivable falls within the recorded allowances.
Due to this factor, management believes that no additional credit risk beyond amounts provided for collection
losses is inherent in Company’s trade receivables.

NOTE 8 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Bank balances : 2002 2001
Koghank

- demand deposits 5,815 7.549

- time deposits 11,298 7,303

- other cash equivalents

(credit card slip accounts) 34,523 37,669

Koghank Azerhaijan

- demand deposits 116

- time deposits 591

51,343 52,521
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2002 urless otheswise indicated, Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless othenwise indicated.)

NOTE & - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Due from related parties: 2002 2001
Tam Fazarlama ve |letisim AS. 234 -
Ram Dvg Ticaret AS. 178 2477
Sanal Merkez TAS. 7o B4
Izocam Tic, ve San. A.5. 51 6
Setur Divan Otel 45 34
Arpelik AS. 39 0
Garanti Balfour Beatty Cons. Ind,,Bulgaria 13 526
Other 215 323
Total B4 4,250
Due to related parties: 20n s
DHizey Tiiketim Mal. San. Paz. ve Tic. A5, 4,339 4364
Maret Marmara Besicillk ve Et San.ve Tic. AS. 3,866 3918
Sek 5iit Endiistrisi Kurumu San.ve Tic. A5, 3639 1,729
Ram Sigorta Aracilik Hizmetled A5, 1,686 39
Ram Des Ticaret A5, 650 14,907
Other 2,551 5,172
Total 16,729 30,127
Sales of goods: 2002 2001
Sanal Merkez Tic. AS. G467 6,220
Setur Divan Otel 412 266
Setur Divan Kurugesme 206 207
Arcelik AS. 204 08
Marmaris Alhinyunus Turistik Tesisleri AS. 185 518
Garanti Balfour Beatty Ing. San. ve Tic. A5, 180 188
Aygaz AS. 163 38
Tiirk Traktdr ve Ziraat Makinalan AS. 158 349
| zocam Tic. ve San. AS. 103 I8
Other o1 Y2
Total 8,868 8,962
Fixed asset purchases: 2002 2001
Kog Sistern Bilgl ve iletisim Hizmetleri A5, 713 2,020
Otokog Otomotiv Tic. ve San. A5, 314 -
Birlesik Motor Sanayi ve Tic. AS. 154 -
Tekiz |zolasyon va Yapi Elamanlan A5, = i
Other 30 67

1,211 2831
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NOTE & - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Inventory purchases: 2002 2001
Maret Marmara Besicilik ve Et San. ve Tic. AS. 26,574 26,184
Sel Siit Endiistrisi Kurumu San.ve Tic. A5, 20,189 22,512
Dilzey Tiketim Mal. San. Paz. ve Tic. AS. 17,938 17,826
Pastavilla Kartal Makarnacilik San. ve TICAS. 1,820 1,881
Fam Dng Ticarat AS. 1,517 11,560
Tat Konserve San. A5, 1,632 1,700
Kofisa Dig Ticaret 8.5, 1,250 -
Divan Otelcilik 726 7as
Kog Ata Sanayi 554 260
Sanal Merkez SE0 182
Other 358 560
Total 72,958 B3.453
Service purchases: 1002 2001
THT Lofistik Datm Higmeter 4,5, B, 216 1,004
Koy Ece 4511 2,248
Kop Holding A5, 2,220 768
Ram Sigorta Aracilik Hizmetleri A5, 2,146 2,453
Kognet Haberesme Teknolaji ve letigim Hizmetleri A5, 1,518 129
Garanti Balfour Beatty Cons, Ind, and Trading Co, Inc, Bulgaria 520 12,579
Otfver 1,484 1,533
Total 20,615 20,834
Borrowings: 1002 2001
Koghank A%,
Shart-term debt 4,937
Koghank Nederland M.V,
Shaort-term debt 1,806 7850
6,743 7,850
Rent Income: 2002 2001
Koghank A5, 319 149
Argelik A5, 196 122
Setur Servis Turistik AS. 105 157
Orfer 119 76
739 504
Rent Expense : 2002 2001
Temel Ticaret ve Yatinm A5, oEs 1,198
Wehhi Kog Vakh 723 :
Kog Allianz Sigorta A5, 00 457
Kog Holding Emekli Yardim Sandig Vakhi L0 -
Othier 123
2,60 1,655
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NOTE & - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Interest income: 2002 2001
Koghank AS. 1,526 11,289
Koghank Azerbailjan 30 :
2,556 11,289
Interest expense: 2002 2001
Kog Finansal Kiralama AS. 837 2,280
Kochank Nederland M.V, 539 1,388
Kocbank AS. 32 :
1,408 3,668
Dividend received: 2002 2001
Kog Finansal Hizmetler A5, 335
Temel Gida GmbH 10
Marmara Besicilik ve Et San. Ve Tic.AS. z LT
345 54
Dividend paid: 2002 2001
Temel Ticaret ve Yatinm A5, 2,804 4,978
Kog Holding A.5. 14 25
2,818 5,003
Management fee received: 2002 2001
Tani Pazarlama ve lletisim Hiz. AS. 242 =
Donations 2002 2001
Wehhi Kog Vakh Kog Oniversitesi 700 1,086

NOTE 9 - INVENTORIES

2002 2001

Merchandise stock 87,211 Q4,469
Other 1,563 2,073
B8, T84 96,542

Less: Provision for ohsolescence (923) (881}
87,861 95,661

Inventories of TLa,g20 billion are carried at net realisable value (zoow: TLy340 billion).
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otherwise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless olhenwise indicated )

NOTE 10 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

2002 2001

Value Added Tax ("WAT™) receivable 17,632 4,08
Frepaid expenses 12,101 16,576
Advances given PR ]
Prepayments for land leases 50 233
Rent receivable 216 4,719
Prepayments and accrued income 180 1,782
Taxes and funds deductible 162 111
Due from employvees 148 502
Other 571 1,028
33,858 19,748

NOTE 11 - NON-CURRENT AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENTS IN AS50CIATES

2002 2001
Shareholding Shareholding
TL billion % TL billion %

Non-current avallable-for-sale

Investments

Sanal Merkez (%) 915 69,99 915 69,99
ok Marketler (*) __401 99.60 401 95.60

1,316 1,316

{*)Sok Marketler and Sanal Merkez are subsidiaries excluded from scope of consolidation on the grounds of
materiality due to the insignificance of their impact on the cansolidated net worth, financial position and results
of the Company. They have been accounted for as if they were available-for-sale investments and are stated at
cost as they do not have quoted market prices in active markets and their fair values cannot be reliably measured.

2002 2001
Shareholding Shareholding
TL billion % TL billion %

Investments in associates

Tam Pazarlama 1,920 32.00

Kog Ece (Mote 34) 1,401 25.00 958 25.00
Temel Gida 1 20000 _x 20.00

3322 958

The percentage of ewnership in amounts are computed aver the nominal value of shares.,

Investments in which Migros has attributable interests of 20% or more, which are immaterial to the overall
consolidated financial statements, are carried at cost and restated to equivalent purchasing power at 31 December
2002, These companies have not been either accounted for using the equity method or carried at their fair value
at the balance sheet date due to the insignificance of their combined impact on the consolidated net worth,
financial position and results of the Company and not having areliably measured fair value at the balance sheet
date,
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER
{Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira (TL.} in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2002 unless
otherwise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 12 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT-NET (Continued)

Since 1984, using an option granted under Turkish tax legislation, the Company has revalued in its statutory
books of account Its property, plant and equipment that has been in use for more than one year (excluding land,
wihich can not be revalued), and the related accumulated depreciation at each year-end, by using the rates and
procedures prescribed by the legislation. The resulting increases in the net book values of the assets are induded
under shareholders’ equity as revaluation surplus in the statutory records. The Company may use the revaluation
surplus for issuance of free capital shares to existing shareholders. However, if the revaluation increment is.
included in an account other than the revaluation surplus account, the amount Is subject to corporation tax.

At 31 December 2002 the historical amounts of revaluation surplus included in equity of the Company are as

follows:
Historical amount of revaluation surplus
TL billion
31 December 2002 B&,830
31 December 2001 65,702

In the statutory books of account, depredation is provided on revalued amounts, except for the net revaluation
increment applicable to buildings, and such depreciation is deductible in the computation of income subject to
corporation tac

All entries related to such revaluation which were recorded in the statutory books of account of the Company
have been eliminated in the consolidated finandal statements as part of the restatement process referred toin
Mote 2.

Borrowing costs of TL491 billion (2001: TLEZ billion) arising on financing specifically entered into for the
construction of the new stores were capitalised during the period. The capitalisation rate used represents the
interest cost of the borrowing used to finance the project.

Leased assets included in property, plant and equipmentwhere the Company is under a finance lease, comprise
following machinery and equipment:

2002 2001
Net book value 25,496 29,654
NOTE 13 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Effect of
changes in
Opening Transfers foreign Closing
1jammryzo02  Additions Disposals  (Mobe1z) exchange mtes 31 December 2002
Rights 4,293 378 i ) (77] 5,595
Other ik angible assets 2,698 ’ ) ) % 2,608
Recummlated amirtisation (2,269) (549} T {2608) L {5,496)
et book valee 4,722 (171} - (2,698) (57) 1,796




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER
{Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira {TL.} i terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 Deember 2002 unless.
otherwise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless othenwise indicated )

NOTE 14 - GOODWILL

Opening Closing

ijanuary ze0z  Additions Disposals  Transfers 31 December zooz

Goodwil 4,208 : - : 4,248

Megative goodwill (5, 609) . i ) (5,603)

Accumulated amortisation (847) (218) k z (B65]
et book vaiue 80) 2 - - oz

In 2001 Migros purchased 9.21% of the issued share capital of Rambutya for a cash consideration of TL ,142
billions and 10% of the issued share capital of Ramenka for a cash consideration of TL 14,126 billions and 7%
of the issued share capital of Ramstore for a cash consideration of TL6,684 billions from Ram D Tic, AS.

Details of total net assels acquired during the year ended 31 December 2001 and related goodwill and negative

goodwill are as follows:
2002 200
Total cash consideration (net of cash acquired) 26,952 26,952
Less: net assets acquired at fair value (32,561} (32,561}
Negative Goodwill (5.609) {5,609)
NOTE 15 - INVESTMENT PROPERTY Effect of
changes in
Opening Transfers fereign Closing
1Jamuaryaoo:  Additions  (Woleaz) exchange rales 31 December 2002
Cosl
Land and buildings 79,352 i 20,344 {L542) 48,154
Tetal 29,352 z 20,344 (1,542} 48,154
Accumulated depreciation
Land and buildings (1,543) (591} ’ a2 (2,052)
Bt busok va Lt 27,809 (591) 20,364 (1.460) 6,102

Investment progerty owned by the Company is leased stores area under rent agreements. Fair value of investment
property was estimated using the discounted cash flow projections at the year end as comparable sale of property
transactions are infrequent. The Company has estimated that fair valua of its investment property at 31 December
2002 amounted to TLYO,005 billion {2001: TL59, 350 billion).

NOTE 16 - OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2002 2001

Prepayments for land leases 12,735 6,185
Prepaid expenses 1,002 3679
Other 22 101
14,160 9,765




MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER
{Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira {TL.} i terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 Deember 2002 unless.
otherwise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless othenwise indicated )

NOTE 17 - BANK BORROWINGS

2002
Interest rate p.a. U.5. Dollars TL billion
Shodt-term bank bomrowings T50-12:25%, Libor+ 1 F5t e Libor+ 3% 10,876 17T
Cumrernt portion of long-term bank barawings
With fixed intesest rates 6.5 10.85% 6,412 10516
With floating interest rates Libors2,35%t ol ibors8,00% 7,285 11,915
Short-term bank barrowings 24573 40,208
Loag term bank borrawings
With fixed intesest rates B.50%-10L85% 26,345 43,197
With floating nterest rates LEbiore2,35% 1 ol Ibor +8,00% 28,315 4E, 284
Long-term bank borrawings 54660 B.481
Total bank barrawings 19,233 129,689
2001
Interest rate p.a. U.5. Dollars TL billien
Shoet-tesm bank borrowings T8 18% 5,616 10,605
Current poion of long-term bank bomowings BE-11% 12,m% 22,687
Shot-term bank bomowings 17635 3
Long-term bank borrawings E%11% 62,798 118,493
Total bank borrowlngs B0.433 151,785
The redemption schedule of long term bank borrowings is as follows:
U.5. Dollars TL billlen
2004 12,061 19,753
2005 13,060 19,719
2004 12,530 20,523
2007 and over 18,029 29,486
54,660 89,481

Short-term bank loan obligations of Ramenka amounting to USD9, 771,000 which are all classified as shork-term
bosrowings have been repaid upon receipt of the new tranche of the IFC loan in the amount of IS D15,000,000
in january 2003,

NOTE 18 - TRADE PAYABLES 2002 2001
Supplier current accounts 236,331 240,157
Payables with regard to construction-in-progress 9,567 -
Notes payable - 3,836
Other 41 -

245,939 243,993



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER
[Amaounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira (TL) in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December
2003 unless otherwise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless otherwiseindicated.)

NOTE 19 - TAXES ON INCOME

2002 2001
Comporation and income taxes cusruntly payable B,BE6 10,373
Less; prepaid taxes {6,102) (4,951)
Taxes on income 2,784 5822

Turkay

Turkish tax legisiation does not pesmit a parent company and i1s subsidiaries to file a consolidated tax return,
Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in these consolidated financial statements, have been calculated on
a separate-entity basis.

In Turkey corporation fax is payable at the rate of 33% on the total income of the Company after adjusting for
cortain disallowabie expenses, exempl income and investment and other allowances, No further tax is payable
unless the profit is distributed.

Income exempt from corporation tax fexcept dividend income received from Turkish companies] is subject to
with holding tax at the rate of 19.8% regardless of whether the prafits are distributed.

Dividends paid by the Company are subject to a withholding tax calculated on the gross dividend to be paid at
tve rabe of 16.5% for private companies and 5.5% for quoted companies, An increase in capital using distributable
profit or by issuing bonus shares is not considered as a profit distribution and thus there is no withholding tax.

Corporations are required to pay advance corporation lax quarterly at the rate of 25% on their corporate income,
Advance tax is payabla by the 15 of the second month following each calendar quarter end. Advance tax paid
by corporations is credited against the annual eorporation tax lability, The balance of the advance tax paid may
be refunded or used to set off against other liabilities to the government.

Interestincome on Turkish government bonds and reasary bills is subject to corporation lax,

Capital gains derived from the sale of investments in subsidiaries and immovable assets held for notless than
two years are tax exempt if such gains are added to paid In capital in the year in which they are sold.

Capital expenditures and projecbed capital expenditures for the following year are eligible for investment allowance
incentives. Such allowance is available to companies for specific capital investments and are deductible from
taxable income pelor 1o the calculation of the corporate income tax, Investment allowance incentives utilised are
subject to withholding tax at the rate of 19.8% (2001: 19.68%]

In May zoon0, Coundl of State resolved to cancel the payment of withholding tax on investment incentive allowance.
Further to this resolution, the Company filed a court case for the refund of the withholding tax, amounting to
TL2,702,5%9 million, on investment incentive allowance paid for 1999, As the court case was finalised in favour
of the Company, no withholding tax provision is accounted forin 31 December 2001 financial statements. The
Company recognised the amount of TL2,702,599 million as income following the final resolution of the General
Assembly of Tax Courts Offica.

In Turiey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on fax assessments. Companies file their
Lax refurms within four months following the close of the accounting year to which they relate, Taxretums are
open for § years from the beginning of the year that follows the date of filing. During this ime the tax authorities
have the right to audit tax returns, and the related accounting records on which they are based, and may issue
re-assessments based on their findings.

Under the Turkish taxation system, tax losses can be camied forward to offset against
future taxable income for up to 5 years. Tax losses cannot be carried back to offset profits from previous periods.
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NOTE 19 - TAXES ON INCOME (Continued)
Russla

The applicable income Lax rate was 35% in RBussia in 200, An income tax rate of 26% has been enacted in August
2001 and became effective starting from 1 January 2002,

Under the Russian taxation system fax losses can genevally be carried Forward to offset future taxable profits
over the subsequent 10 year. The madimum offset in any one year is limited to 30% of the total taxable profit
of the year, Losses not offset in the eligible periods are lost,

Karakhstan

Rambutya is exempt from income tax for five years beginning 1999 on income received
from the Ramstore cinema, skating rink, skate rental shop, gymnasivm and parking place and a 50% exemption
for the same income for ane year thereafter. Rambutya also has exernplions oves property tax and land fax for
5 years starting from 1993,

The taxation on income for the year ended 31 December, expressed in terms of the purchasing power of the
Turkish lira at 31 December 2002, is summarised as Follows:

2002 2001
Deferred tax expense (5,757] (17,565)
Current tax expense (13,877) (16,621)
Taxation on ncome (19,634) (33,990)

Deferred taxes

The Company recognises deferred tax assets and liabilities based on temgorary differences arising between the
financial statements as reporied for [FRS purposes and the statutory tax financial statements, Such temporary
diffesences usually result in the recognition of revenue and expenses in different reporting periods for IFRS and
tax purposes,

The breakdown of cumulative temporary differences and the resulting defered tax assets) liabilities) provided
at 31 December, using the enacted tax rates, are as follows:
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NOTE 19 - TAKES ON INCOME (Continued)

Cumulative Deferred tax
temporary differences assets/(liabilities)
2002 2001 2002 2001
Lease obligations 9,064 20401 2,951 6,737
Tanlosses canvied forward 8541 10,843 2,426 2,602
Prowision for employment besmination benefits 3426 3,113 1,130 1027
Alloveance for unearned interest income 465 1.07% 154 356
Accounts payable ) 2405 ) 577
Unised irvestment incentive sllowances (unused Tax credits) i G0,450 : 11,939
Temporary diffesence on inverdory 1,569 (627} 465 (131}
Effects of restatement of progerty, plant and equipment  (157,351)  (230,649) [B0,455) (71,602)
Allowance for unincumed Interest axpensa (12,389) (14,341) {4 ) {4730
Fair value adjustment on imestmants [2,427) 748 (801} 247
Prepayments for land lease {217 [325) (52) 222}
Trade receivables 3 (567} : (137)
Non-current assets ) [364) ) (101}
Other [3,495) 102 (904} 24
(192,814)  (118,338) (59,178)  (53421)

Movements in deferred taxes can be analysed as follows;
Deferred tax assets/(llabilithes)

1 January 2001 (25,115)
Effect of adopting 1AS 3% 483
Defierred tax liahility arising through the
addition of new subsidiaries to scope of consolidation (Note 2) (11,226)
Charge to statement of income (17,565)
31 December 2001 (53,421)
Charge to statement of income (5,757}
31 December 2002 (59,178)
MOTE 20 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
2002 2001
Taxes and funds payable 10,064 12,481
Payable to personel 5567 3,185
Seourity deposits 2,253 1,349
Payable due taland leases 2,043 A
Miscellaneous accrued expenses 1,833 2,363
Defarved income 582 1,717
Oiher 2,191 2,528
23,513 23,623
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NOTE 21 - PROVISION FOR EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION BENEFITS
There are no agreements for pension commitments other than the legal requirement as explained below:

Under Turkish Labor Law, the Company is required to pay termination benefits to each emplovee who has
completed one year of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, is called up for military
service, dies or who retires after completing 25 years of service (20 years for women) and achieves the retirement
age (58 for women and 6o for men). Since the legislation was changed on 8 September 2000 there are certain
transitional provisions relating to length of service prior to retirement. The amount payable consists of one
month's salary limited o a maximum of TL1,260,150,000 (2001: TL978,020,000]) for each year of service at 31
December 2003,

The lability is not funded, as there is no funding requirement.

The provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the
Company arising from the retirement of the employees.

International Financial Reporting Standards require actuarial valuation metheds to be developed to estimate the
enterprise's obligation under defined benefit plans. Accordingly the following actuarial assumptions were used
in the calculation of the total liability:

2002 2001
Discount rate 6% 7%
Turnover rate to estimate the probility of retirement BL33% B0.67%

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability of TL1,260, 150,000 for each year of service will increase
in line with inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the
anticipated effects of future inflation. As the maximum liability is revised semi-annually, the maximum amount
of TL1,260,150,000 (2001: TLS78,020,000-historic amount] has been taken into consideration in calculating the
provision for employment termination benefit of the Company.

Movements of the provision for employment termination benefits during the year were as follows:

2002 2001
Balance-1 January 3,113 4,709
Increase for the year 1,237 o8
Less: monetary gain (914) (2,390)
Balance-31 December 3426 3.113

The average number of people employed by the Company, its Subsidiaries and Joint-Venture during 2002 was
8,545 (2001; 8,108)in aggregate,

NOTE 22 - MINORITY INTEREST
Changes in minority interest during the year are as follows:

Increase in minorty  Decease in Het {loss))

interest dug to mimority Income
sabsiciaries  Enferest  atfributable to
Imcrease in acded to scope of dee toshare minorkty  Trarslation
Year 1 January share @pital consolication acquistions Interest Reserve 31 December
2001 3,357 - 4801 (508) (2,269) - 5,383
002 s . ST dae eem




MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER
{Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira (TL.} in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2002 unless
otherwise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 23 - SHARE CAPITAL

Migros adopted the registered share capital system available to companies registered with the Capital Market
Board {"CMB") and set a limit on its registered share capital representing registered type shares with a nominal
value of TL1,000. The Company’s historical authorised and paid-in share capital at 31 December was as follows:

2002 2001
Limit on registered share capital (historical) 1060, 000 9,180
Historical authorised and paid-in share capital 55,080 9,180

Companies in Turkey may exceed the limit on registered share capital in the event of issuance of free capital
shares to existing shareholders.

The shareholders of the Company and their shareholders to capital with historical figures as at 31 December
2002 and 2001 are stated below:

2002 2001
Shareholders Share %
Temel Ticaret ve Yatinm A5, 27,985 So.a1 &G
Public quotation 26,957 48.94 5493
Kog Holding A5, __138 _0.25 23
55,080 100.00 9,180

Adjus tment to share capital represents the restatemeant affect of the cash contributions to share capital in yaar-
end equivalent purchasing power.

There are 55,080,000,000 (2001: 9, 180,000,000 unit of shares with face value of TL1,000 {2001: TL1,000) each.
There are no privileged shares.

NOTE 24 - CAPITAL SURPLUS

Capital surplus represents the net proceeds from the offering of the Company’s shares remaining unutilised pre-
empfive rights at the share capital increase in 1997, This surplus was recorded in shareholders’ equity and is
not available for distribution. In addition to that in accordance with the Board of Directors Resolution dated
August 5, 1998, the Company sold 75,000,000 shares in foreign stock exchange markets and obfained funds at
anetamount of TL117,842 billion expressed in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2002,
This surplus was also recorded in shareholders' equity and was not available for distribution.

NOTE 25 - LEASE OBLIGATIONS

2002 2001
T T
EUR usp  egubalent  pp usp  Squivalent
Shortderm lease obligations 497 3,519 6,508 455 5,142 10,440
Long-term lease obligations. 1,095 546 2760 1,594 3,885 9,961
e — Y o A T ﬁiﬂi




MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER
{Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira (TL.} in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2002 unless
otherwise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 25 - LEASE OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Repayment plan of long-term lease obligations is as follows: 1
EUR usD equhalent

2004 S44 L58 1,692

2005 552 ra 1,068

1,096 546 2,760

Leasing agreements were signed with Kog Finansal Kiralama A%, and Siemens Finansal Biralama A5, Effective
interestrates vary between 8-13% p.a.

MNOTE 26 - RETAINED EARNINGS AND LEGAL RESERVES

Retained sarnings, as per the statutory financial statements, other than legal reserves, are available for distribution,
subject to the legal reserve requirement referrad to belaw.

The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish Commercial
Code (TCC) The TCC stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of statutory profits at the rate of
5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company's paid-in share capital. The second legal
reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in share
capital. Under the TCC, the legal reserves can only be used to offset losses and are not available for any other
usage unless they exceed 50% of paid-in share capital.

Dividend distribution is made by the Company in Turkish lira in accordance with its Articles after deducting taxes
and setting aside the legal reserves as discussed above,

Quoted companies are subject to dividend requirements regulated by the CMB as follows:

According to CMB regulations quoted companies have the following two options; they may either distribute
dividends in cash or in Company’s shares or they may elect not to distribute any dividends at all. However, the
CMB may require the company to distribute dividends in cash. If the company makes a decision to distribute any
dividends, distribution should be made in the five months following the year-end.

Composition of prior periods” earnings and dividends (per Statutory Financial Statements) at 31 December (not
adjusted for inflation) are as follows:

2002 2001
Legal reserves 3,562 2,300
Undistributed general reserve A Bl 33521
Unappropriated net income 13,186 17,776
Balance-31 December 60,192 52,597
Historical amounts of dividends
distributed during year from previous
periods'net income per statutory
financial statements &,590 &,550




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

{Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira {TL.} i terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 Deember 2002 unless.
otherwise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless othenwise indicated )

NOTE 26 - RETAINED EARNINGS AND LEGAL RESERVES (Continued)

As disclosed in Note 2, the Company prepares its statutory financial statements in accordance with TCC, CMB
and tax legislation. Effective from 1 January 2003, it is mandatory for all listed companies to adopt two new
standards, which are approved and issued by the CMB, namely, Financdal Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
and Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting for Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures for the first time for the year ended 31 December 2003, Following the adoption of the new standards,
listed companies, after deducting taxes and setting aside the legal reserves, will only be allowed to distribute
the lower of net income in financial statements prepared in accordance with TCC or net income in financial
statements prepared in accordance with CMB as dividends to their shareholders.

NOTE 27 - NET SALES

2002 2001
Domestic sales 1,501,244 1,548,012
Exporis 362 255
Other_ 40,726 22,724
Gross sales 1,542,332 1,570,991
Less: discounts and returns from sales (29, 040) (31,943)
Met sales 1,513,272 1,539,028

MNOTE 28 - GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2002 2001
Staff costs 87,283 103,986
Depreciation 56,0599 63,374
Rent 46,978 48,508
Energy 24,886 27,830
Repair, maintenance, and cleaning 12711 13,313
Telecommunication &,346 4547
Mechanisation 5,045 3,996
Food 3978 4,328
Taxes and other fees 3,534 1,028
Parent company service charges 2,220 768
Stationary 1,559 1,806
Trawvel 1,240 1,530
Employment termination benefits 1,227 794
Other 14599 11,141

262,605 286,658
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{Amaunts expressed in billions of Turkish lira (TL.} n terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 Deember 2002 unless.
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NOTE 29 - FINANCIAL (EXPENSE)/INCOME-NET

Financial Income: 2002 2001
Interest on debl securities F00, 004 &4,701
Foreign exchange gain 15,625 59,572
Due date difference on credit sales 15,017 26,265
Interestincome from time deposits 6,677 23,248
Other interest income 463 1375
Total financial income 67,788 165,161
Financial expense; 2002 001
Due date difference on credit purchases {&5,588) (63,7 36)
Foreign exchange loss (16,080) (56,909)
Interest expense on bank horowings (B, 608) (62,583)
Interest expense on lease obligations (1,349) (3,148)
Other {€02) {58}
Total financial expense (72,227) (186,324)
Net financial (expense)/income (4,439) (21,163)

NOTE 30 - EXTRAORDINARY ITEM

Ramstore Baku made prepayments for a land on which a superstore would be established. However, the
government of Azerbaijan did not allow the Company to make the establishment on the mentioned location and
exchanged the land with another one on a different location. The extracedinary expense amounting to TLA47
billion for the year ended 31 December 2002 is due to the expense exposed by Ramstore Baku regarding the
situation explained above,

The extraordinary expense amounting ta TLG,21 4 billion for the year ended 31 December 2001 s due to damages
arisen on certain property, plant and machinery as a result of the fire occurred in Rams tore Baku superstore in
2001,

MOTE 31 - INTEREST IN |OINT VENTURE

The Company has a 50% interestin a joint venture, “Limited Liability Company Ramenka®, which runs a network
of hyper stores and shopping malls in Moscow, The following amounts represent the Company’s 50% share of
the assets, liabilities, sales and results of the Joint venture and are included in the consolidated balance sheet
and income statement:




MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER
{Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira {TL.} i terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 Deember 2002 unless.
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NOTE 31 - INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

2002 2001
Property, plant and equipment 153,841 127,500
Other non-currant assets 13,069 6,184
o B 44,038 43,357
210,948 177,041
Long-term bank borrowings (40,237) (49,418)
Provisions (13,808) (9,396)
Current liahilities __(7B,187) (34,175)
(132,227) (52,989)
Net assets 78,721 24,052
Sales 202,590 133,920
Frofitbefore tax 29,739 F, 408
Incorme taxes {6,984) (1,118)
Profit after tax 22,755 25,290
NOTE 32 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
a) Other guarantees given were as follows at 31 December:
2002 2001
Fledges {*] 248,092 221,584
Letters of guarantee and commitments 18,218 38,243
Letters of guarantee given to banks 18,674 21,522
284,984 281,349

* Al assets of Rambutya amounting to TL37, 144 billion (Cash and due from banks TL 2,310 billion, trade receivables
TL4GF billion, inventories TL3,401 billion, property, plant and equipment TL30,936 billion) are pledged as security
for the IFC loan agreement signed on 30 July 1999 amounting to USD11 million dollar.

All assets of Ramenka amounting to TL210,%48 billion (Cash and due from banks TL5,57 9 billion, wade receivables
TLa,698 billion, due from related parties TL166 billion, inventodes TL12,972 billion, other current assets TL20,622
billion, property, plant and equipment TL107,740 billion, investment property TL46,102 billion and other non-
cumrent assets TL13,06% hillion] are also pledged as security for the IFC Lloan amounting to USD30 million dollar,

Ramenka sigred two new agreements with IFC, € Loan Agreement and Third Loan Agreement providing USD10
million dollar and USD&0 million dollas respectively. The two of the participants, Migros and Enka Ingaat, act as
guarantors for this loan,




MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER
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NOTE 32 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

b) Other guasantees taken were as follows at 31 Decembers;

2002 2001

Long-term commitments obtained from customers 47,254 15,306
Commitments obtained fram banks - 4068
47,254 19,374

) The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating leases of land and stores are

a5 follows:
Payable within 1 vear 726 798
Payable in 1 to 2 years 726 798
Payable in 2 to § years 2,179 2,394
Payable in 5 to 10years 3244 3,766
Payable after 10years 4,93 4,752
Balance-31 December 11,809 12,508

d) Russian and Kazakhstan tax legislations are subject to varying intespretations and changes aceur frequently.
The interpretation of tax legislation by tax authorities as applied to the transactions and activities of Ramenka
and Rambutya may not coincide with that of management. As a result ransactions may be challenged by tax
authorities and Ramenka and Rambutya may be assessed additional tazes, penalties and interest, which can be
significant. The periods remain open to review by Russian and Kazakhstan tax authorities for three and five years,
respechively.

The potential exposure that may asise due to the above matter regarding the tax legislation can not be reliably
measured and therefore no provision has been provided in these consolidated financial statements. Besides,
management believes that the Company will be able to defend its position in court regarding the matter,

NOTE 33 - FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITION

Historical amounts of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency held by the Parent Company at 31

December are as follows:
2002 2001
HAssets 69,897 55,180
Liahilities (50,880} (73,590}

Met fareign currency position 19,01'}' (18,4100




MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER
{Amounts expressed in billions of Turkish lira {TL.} i terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 Deember 2002 unless.
otherwise indicated. Currencies other than TL are expressed in thousands unless othenwise indicated )

NOTE 33 - FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITION (Continued)

TL equivalents of foreign currency amounts 2002 2001

Cash and cash equivalents usn 3,871 5,885
ELIR B2 150

Investment securities

- Burobonds usn 36,951 15,877

- Foreign currency bonds EUR 11,932 20, &40

Trade receivables,

due from related parties and

other receivables usn 17,062 8,829

Bank borrowings usn 38,043 G2,977

Trade payables, due to related

parties lease ohligations and

otier liahilities uso 10,063 9,864
ELIRCY 2,740 10
GEP 34 i
ITL . 358
FRF : 65
D - 56
NLG - 238

NOTE 34- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

a) On 20 February 2003, the Board of Divectors dedded to purchase the fumiture and fixture in 11 stores that
will be rented from Oypa A.5%. for a purchase consideration of USDS 600,000,

b On 20 March 2003, the Board of Directors decided to sell the shares of “Kog Ece™ with a nominal value of
TLEST hillion to Ece Project Management International for a considesation of nil. Aftes this transaction,
investment share of Migres in Kog Ece decreased from 25% fo 2%,

€} As the chasacteristics of the economic environment of the Russian Federation indicate that hyperinflation
has ceased, effective from 1 January 2003, Ramenka will no longer apply 14529,

d) On % April 2003, amendments to Tax Law 4262 were approved by the Turkish Parliament. Itis expected that
amendments to Tax Law will be published in the Official Gazette and enacted late in April 2003, According
to the aformentioned amendments, the corporation tax rate changes to 30% after adjusting for certain
disallowable expenses, exemptincome and investment and other allowances, In addition, corporations will
be required to pay advance corporation tax quarterly at the rate of 30% on their corporate income, Prior to
the amendments, the rate was 25%.

According to the amendments to the tax law, capital expenditures over TLS billion are eligible for invesiment
incentive allowance of 40%, withoul the requirement of an investment incentive certificate, and the amount
of allowance is not subject towithholding tax, Investment allowances utilized within the scope ofinvestment
incentive certificates granted to applications filed prior to 24 Apsil 2003 are subject to withholding tax at the
rate of 19.8%, irrespective of profit dis ribution,

In addition, profit distribution to resident corposate shareholdess and non-resident shaseholders with business
place in Turkey is not subject to profit distribution tax anymaore,



7. INTERNAT

IONAL NETWORK

COMPANY

COUNTRY NAME ADDRESS TELEPHOME
Azerbaijan Rams tore Babel Prospekti +00 F5-412-303200 | +00F5-412-903201
Azerhaijan 1129.cu Mehelle + 00 941 2903202 +00 0-412-903205
Baku-Azerbaijan | +0098-412-903204
+00 95-41 2-903 206
Bulgaria Rams tore 196 Al +00 359-2-5200550 | +00 359-2-5293671
Bulgaria AD Stamboliysky +00 359-2-5202017
Boulevard 1309
Sofia-Bulgaria
Kazakhstan Rambutya Furmanova Street | <00 7-3272-587580 | <00 7-3272-587570
Rams tore 226 Almaty <00 7-327 2-5875E1
Kazakhstan
Russian Ramenka 121351 00 7O-95-8370440 | <00 FO-95-8370441 |
Federation Rams tose Yartsevskaya 19 | +0070-95-0371072 | <00 70-95-9371971
Mosoow-Russian
Federation |
8. CONTACT NAMES
Corporate Communications and Public Relations |mvestor Relations

Mrs. Ahu Bashut
Manager

e-mail
Telephone
Fax

: ahub@migros.com.tr
(90216 579 32 90

$ 90216 456 5903

Address

: Migros Tiirk T.AS.

Caferaga Mahallesi Damga Sokak
Mo.23%25 81300 Kadikiy-lstanbul

TUREEY

Web-site: hitp:/ fwww.migros.com.tr

Mr. Haluk Yiikler

Foreign Investments Coordination Manager

e-mail
Telephone
Fax

+ haluky@migras com. ir
(9021657033 14

190216 45659 12
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